
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
Date: 7/20/2021 
Time: 5:00 p.m. 

   Location:  Zoom.us/join – ID# 998 8073 4930 

NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
On March 19, 2020, the Governor ordered a statewide stay-at-home order calling on all individuals living in 
the State of California to stay at home or at their place of residence to slow the spread of the COVID-19 
virus. Additionally, the Governor has temporarily suspended certain requirements of the Brown Act. For the 
duration of the shelter in place order, the following public meeting protocols will apply.   

Teleconference meeting: All members of the City Council, city staff, applicants, and members of the public 
will be participating by teleconference. To promote social distancing while allowing essential governmental 
functions to continue, the Governor has temporarily waived portions of the open meetings act and rules 
pertaining to teleconference meetings. This meeting is conducted in compliance with the Governor 
Executive Order N-25-20 issued March 12, 2020, and supplemental Executive Order N-29-20 issued March 
17, 2020. 

• How to participate in the closed session and regular meeting
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

menlopark.org/publiccommentJuly20 *
• Access the meeting real-time online at:

Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 998 8073 4930
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:

(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 998 8073 4930
Press *9 to raise hand to speak

*Written public comments are accepted up to 1-hour before the meeting start time. Written
messages are provided to the City Council at the appropriate time in their meeting.

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto:

Channel 26
• Online:

menlopark.org/streaming

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The instructions 
for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty accessing 
the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 

https://zoom.us/join
https://www.menlopark.org/FormCenter/City-Council-14/July-20-2021-City-Council-Special-Meetin-419
https://zoom.us/join
https://www.menlopark.org/streaming
http://www.menlopark.org/
http://www.menlopark.org/
http://menlopark.org/agenda


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Agenda 
July 20, 2021 
Page 2 

 

According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Closed Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 998 8073 4930) 

A. Call To Order 
 

B. Roll Call 
 

C. Agenda Review 
 

Agenda Review provides advance notice to members of the public and City staff of any 
modifications to the agenda order and any requests from City Councilmembers under City 
Councilmember reports. 
 

D. Closed Session 
 
Public Comment on these items will be taken before adjourning to Closed Session. 
 
D1. Claimant: Lexington Insurance Company/San Mateo County Schools Insurance Group 
 

Agency Claimed Against: City of Menlo Park  
 
E. Adjournment 

 
Special Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 998 8073 4930) 

F. Call To Order 
 

G. Roll Call 
 
H. Presentations and Proclamations 
 
H1. Proclamation: Menlo Park Historical Association 50th Anniversary (Attachment) 
 
I. Consent Calendar 
 
I1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for June 10, 15, 22, 28, and 29, 2021 (Attachment) 
 
I2. Adopt Resolution No. 6644 approving grant of easement to the United States of America for 

construction of a water control structure within Bedwell Bayfront Park for the South Bay Salt Pond 
Restoration project and authorize the city manager to execute the easement agreement  
(Staff Report #21-138-CC) 

 
I3. Adopt Resolution No. 6646 authorizing the city manager to execute an agreement with California 

department of education to reimburse the City for Belle Haven Child Development Center 
operational costs in fiscal year 2021-22 (Staff Report #21-141-CC) 

 
I4. Adopt Resolution No. 6647 modifying the City Council’s regular meeting schedule to include August 

17 and 31, 2021 (Staff Report #21-142-CC) 

https://zoom.us/join
https://zoom.us/join


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Agenda 
July 20, 2021 
Page 3 

 

J. Public Hearing 
 
J1. Hold a public hearing and consider any protests related to the collection of the stormwater regulatory 

fee on the tax roll; adopt Resolution No. 6645 authorizing the collection of the stormwater regulatory 
fee on the tax roll at the existing rates to implement the City’s stormwater management program  
(Staff Report #21-140-CC) (Presentation) 

 
K. Informational Items 
 
K1. City Council agenda topics: August 2021 (Staff Report #21-139-CC) 
 
K2. Recruitment status report as of July 14, 2021 (Staff Report #21-143-CC) 
 
 Web form public comment on item K2. 
 
L. Adjournment 

 
At every regular meeting of the City Council, in addition to the public comment period where the public shall have the right 
to address the City Council on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right 
to directly address the Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during 
the City Council’s consideration of the item.  
 
At every special meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on 
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during consideration of the item.  
For appeal hearings, appellant and applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.  
 
If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of 
Menlo Park at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public 
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available by request by emailing the city clerk at 
jaherren@menlopark.org. Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in 
City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620.  
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956. Members of the public 
can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at menlopark.org/agenda and can receive 
email notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme. 
Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 7/15/2021) 

mailto:jaherren@menlopark.org
http://menlopark.org/agenda
http://www.menlopark.org/notifyme


PROCLAMATION
Menlo Park Historical Association 

50th Anniversary 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park Historical Association was established on March 25, 1971, and is 
thus celebrating its 50th Anniversary; and  

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park Historical Association proposed and then collaborated with City 
officials in the design, development, and installation of a replica (and accompanying storyboard) 
of the Menlo Gates, dedicated on March 17, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park Historical Association proposed and then collaborated with City 
officials in the design, development, and installation at Fremont Park of two storyboards 
detailing the history of Camp Fremont and one storyboard at the Karl E. Clark Park in the Belle 
Haven neighborhood describing the life and contributions of WWII naval hero and community 
leader Karl E. Clark; and 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park Historical Association annually holds numerous member and 
community events about the history of Menlo Park, including physical and virtual walking tours 
showcasing locations of historical significance, an Annual Dinner, and Annual Meeting featuring 
city and community guest speakers; and  

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park Historical Association has partnered with downtown businesses in 
showcasing Menlo Park history via “Menlo Memories” pop-up displays of historical images and 
artifacts; and 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park Historical Association continues to leverage web and social media 
technologies to provide the community with up-to-date and easy to navigate access to the rich 
history of Menlo Park and the Association’s archives; and 

WHEREAS the Menlo Park Historical Association continues to meticulously archive records, 
documents, images, and artifacts historical significance and makes them available to residents, 
researchers, students, community organizations, students, and other interested parties; and  

WHEREAS the Menlo Park Historical Association, since its inception, has worked tirelessly to 
preserve the history, culture, and traditions of our city for our residents, visitors, and future 
generations to enjoy and learn from. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that I, Drew 
Combs, Mayor of the City of Menlo Park, on behalf of the 
City Council and City, recognize and support the mission 
and contributions of the Menlo Park Historical Association. 

Drew Combs, Mayor 
July 20, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM H-1

Page H-1.1



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 
Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

6/10/2021 
1:00 p.m. 
Zoom 

Closed Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 922 8106 2905) 

A. Call To Order

Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 1:08 p.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Mueller, Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty 

C. Closed Session

C1. Government Code Section 54957(b) 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Title: City Manager 

No reportable actions. 

D. Adjournment

Mayor Combs adjourned the meeting at 2:10 p.m.

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk

AGENDA ITEM I-1

Page I-1.1



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 10, 2021 
Page 2 

NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
On March 19, 2020, the Governor ordered a statewide stay-at-home order calling on all individuals living in 
the State of California to stay at home or at their place of residence to slow the spread of the COVID-19 
virus. Additionally, the Governor has temporarily suspended certain requirements of the Brown Act. For the 
duration of the shelter in place order, the following public meeting protocols will apply.   

Teleconference meeting: All members of the City Council, city staff, applicants, and members of the public 
will be participating by teleconference. To promote social distancing while allowing essential governmental 
functions to continue, the Governor has temporarily waived portions of the open meetings act and rules 
pertaining to teleconference meetings. This meeting is conducted in compliance with the Governor 
Executive Order N-25-20 issued March 12, 2020, and supplemental Executive Order N-29-20 issued March 
17, 2020. 

• How to participate in the closed session and regular meeting
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

menlopark.org/publiccommentJune10 *
• Access the meeting real-time online at:

Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 922 8106 2905
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:

(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 922 8106 2905
Press *9 to raise hand to speak
Written public comments are accepted up to 1-hour before the meeting start time. Written 
messages are provided to the City Council at the appropriate time in their meeting.

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto: 

Channel 26
• Online:

menlopark.org/streaming

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The 
instructions for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty 
accessing the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 

According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Page I-1.2

http://www.menlopark.org/


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 
Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

6/15/2021 
5:00 p.m. 
Zoom 

Closed Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 943 8480 2751) 

A. Call To Order

Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 5:04 p.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Mueller (arrived at 5:11 p.m.), Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, Assistant 

Administrative Services Director Dan Jacobson, Acting Human Resources Manager 
Kristen Strubbe, Legal Counsel Charles Sakai 

C. Closed Session

C1. Closed session conference with labor negotiators pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 regarding 
labor negotiations with the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees Local 
829 (AFSCME) and Confidential employees; Service Employees International Union Local 521 
(SEIU); Menlo Park Police Sergeants Association (PSA); Menlo Park Police Officers’ Association 
(POA); and unrepresented management 

Attendees: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Manager Nick Pegueros, City 
Attorney Nira F. Doherty, Legal Counsel Charles Sakai, Acting Human Resources Manager Kristen 
Strubbe 

No reportable actions. 

D. Adjournment

Mayor Combs adjourned the meeting at 5:37 p.m.

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk

Page I-1.3



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 15, 2021 
Page 2 
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
On March 19, 2020, the Governor ordered a statewide stay-at-home order calling on all individuals living in 
the State of California to stay at home or at their place of residence to slow the spread of the COVID-19 
virus. Additionally, the Governor has temporarily suspended certain requirements of the Brown Act. For the 
duration of the shelter in place order, the following public meeting protocols will apply.   

Teleconference meeting: All members of the City Council, city staff, applicants, and members of the public 
will be participating by teleconference. To promote social distancing while allowing essential governmental 
functions to continue, the Governor has temporarily waived portions of the open meetings act and rules 
pertaining to teleconference meetings. This meeting is conducted in compliance with the Governor 
Executive Order N-25-20 issued March 12, 2020, and supplemental Executive Order N-29-20 issued March 
17, 2020. 

• How to participate in the closed session and regular meeting
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

menlopark.org/publiccommentJune15 *
• Access the meeting real-time online at:

Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 943 8480 2751
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:

(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 943 8480 2751
Press *9 to raise hand to speak

(670) Written public comments are accepted up to 1-hour before the meeting start time. 
Written messages are provided to the City Council at the appropriate time in their meeting.

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto: 

Channel 26
• Online:

menlopark.org/streaming

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The 
instructions for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty 
accessing the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 
According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Page I-1.4

http://www.menlopark.org/


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 
Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

6/22/2021 
5:00 p.m. 
Zoom 

Closed Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 998 8073 4930) 

A. Call To Order

Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Mueller, Nash, Wolosin 
Absent: Taylor 
Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, Public Works 

Director Nikki Nagaya, Assistant Public Works Director Chris Lamm 

C. Agenda Review

The City Council pulled items K1., K3., K5., K6., and K7. for discussion.

City Councilmember Wolosin requested the addition of two agenda items:
• Extending the City’s eviction moratorium
• Policy for advisory body meeting recordings

D. Closed Session

D1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION (Paragraph (1) of subdivision 
(d) of Section 54956.9) Case number: 21-CIV-01717

E. Adjournment

Mayor Combs adjourned to the regular meeting at 5:42 p.m. 

Regular Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 998 8073 4930) 

F. Call To Order

Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 5:44 p.m.

G. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Mueller, Nash, Wolosin 
Absent: Taylor 
Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, City Clerk Judi 

A. Herren

Page I-1.5



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 2 
H. Report from Closed Session

No reportable actions. 

I.

I1. 

I2. 

Presentations and Proclamations

Proclamation: Recognizing June 2021 as Pride Month (Attachment)

Mayor Combs read the proclamation (Attachment).

Tanya Beat Director of the LGBTQ Commission, Commission on the Status of Women, County of 

San Mateo accepted the proclamation.

Proclamation: Recognizing Juneteenth Day (Attachment)

Mayor Combs read the proclamation (Attachment).

• Pamela Jones spoke in support of the proclamation.
• Julie Shanson spoke in support of displaying the flag for 150 days.

I3. Proclamation: Recognizing Menlo Park Fire Protection District Chief Harold Schapelhouman 

Mayor Combs read the proclamation (Attachment). 

• Pamela Jones spoke in support of the proclamation.

I4. Presentation: Overview of SRI International's campus master plan (Parkline) (Presentation) 

Assistant Community Development Director Deanna Chow introduced the item. 

SRI International (SRI) representatives John McIntire, Lane Partners representative Mark Murray, 
and Studios Enterprises representative Thomas Yee made the presentation (Attachment). 

• Karen Grove spoke in support of fair housing.
• Julie Shanson spoke in support of affordable housing near services.
• Pamela Jones spoke in support of equity and housing near services.
• Adina Levin spoke in support of housing near services and for varying income levels.
• Phillip Barre spoke in support of increased community engagement.
• Rachel Horst spoke in support of the project and increased community engagement.
• Peter C. spoke in support of the project and requested clarification on global impacts.

The City Council received clarification on access points, application process and timeline, public 
engagement, changes to existing structures, and the Stanford relationship with SRI related to 
property tax impacts. 

The City Council discussed impacts to the housing element. 

Page I-1.6



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 3 
J. Public Comment

• Philip Barre spoke in support of the cutout in front of the Pine Street apartments and the need for
increased traffic mitigations.

• Adina Levin spoke in support of an extended City eviction moratorium.
• Karen Grove spoke in support of an extended City eviction moratorium.

K. Consent Calendar

The City Council pulled items K1., K3., K5., K6., and K7. for discussion.

K1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for May 11, 18, 25, June 2 and 8, 2021 (Attachment) 

The City Council directed staff to update the May 25, 2021 minutes, item N2., to include “requested” 
in the following sentence “The City Council requested information on MPPD presence in East Palo 
Alto and received clarification on the two proposed resolutions”. 

K2. Adopt Resolution No. 6640 of intention to abandon public utility easements within the properties at 
115 Independence Drive, 104 Constitution Drive, and 110 Constitution Drive (Menlo 
Portal) associated with the proposed redevelopment of the project site (Staff Report 
#21-129-CC) 

K3. Waive the second reading and adopt zoning Ordinance No. 1077 amendment associated with 
community amenities and bonus level development in the Office, Life Sciences and Residential 
Mixed Use zoning districts to establish an in-lieu fee payment for the provision of community 
amenities and authorize applicants to propose community amenities not on the community 
amenities list through negotiation of a development agreement (Staff Report #21-130-CC) 

Mayor Combs was recused due to Facebook being his employer and exited the meeting. 

ACTION: Motion and second (Wolosin/ Nash) to waive the second reading and adopt zoning Ordinance No. 
1077 amendment associated with community amenities and bonus level development in the Office, Life 
Sciences and Residential Mixed Use zoning districts to establish an in-lieu fee payment for the provision of 
community amenities and authorize applicants to propose community amenities not on the community 
amenities list through negotiation of a development agreement, passed 3-1-1 (Combs recused and Taylor 
absent) 

Mayor Combs rejoined the meeting. 

K4. Adopt Resolution No. 6641 authorizing the city manager to rescind the portions of Emergency Order 
No. 2 related to the Main Library, Belle Haven Branch Library, Arrillaga Family Recreation 
Center, and Police Department Lobby (Staff Report #21-131-CC) 

K5. Waive second reading and adopt fireworks Ordinance No. 1076 (Staff Report #21-132-CC) 

The City Council received clarification on recent police department calls and reports related to 
fireworks. 

K6. Award a construction contract to Interstate Grading and Paving, Inc. and appropriate  
additional project funding for the 2021 Willow Road resurfacing project (Staff Report #21-133-CC) 

Page I-1.7



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 4 
K7. Adopt Resolution No. 6642 approving the application for fiscal year 2021-22 Cannabis Tax Fund 

Grant Program grant funds in the amount of $376,662.02 (Staff Report #21-134-CC) 

• N. Maraayah Roberts spoke in opposition of police department funding and in support of funding
communities in need.

• Jason Ollarvia spoke in support on using the grant funds for serving and protecting the
community through law enforcement reform.

• Philip Barre spoke in support of the grant funding outside of just traffic.
• Karen Grove spoke on concerns of racial profiling, utilizing funds for reimagining public safety,

and in support of accepting the grant funds.

The City Council discussed community engagement related to police department funding, traffic 
unit(s), and 2020-21 budget cuts to the police department. 

The City Council received clarification on what this grant funds, relationship to cannabis funding and 
traffic enforcement, racial profiling and targeting, using funds on education to public, impacts to the 
budget when receiving or denying the grant, and how funding is allocated to increase education 
funding. 

The City Council provided direction to staff to increase funding for education and prevention and less 
on enforcement. 

ACTION: Motion and second (Wolosin/ Mueller) to adopt Resolution No. 6642 approving the application for 
fiscal year 2021-22 Cannabis Tax Fund Grant Program grant funds in the amount of $376,662.02 prioritizing 
education and prevention, 4-1 (Taylor absent). 

ACTION: Motion and second (Nash/ Combs) to approve the consent calendar except item K3. and K7. and 
with edits to K1., passed 4-1 (Taylor absent).  

L. Public Hearing

L1. Adopt Resolution No. 6639 overruling protests, ordering the improvements, confirming the diagram 
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for Landscaping Assessment District for 
fiscal year 2021-22 (Staff Report #21-127-CC) (Presentation) 

Assistant Civil Engineer Esther Jung made the presentation (Attachment). 

• Pamela Jones requested clarification on the determination of tree costs in areas with less
landscape and requested clarification on how tax is levied.

• N. Maraayah Roberts spoke on concerns for budgeting for this project and in support of increased
budget for equity and battling racism.

The City Council received clarification on how the tax is levied, the original property tax measure, 
costs to residents to maintain trees, fees, and how residents can review and argue their street tree 
assessment. 

The City Council discussed increasing the number of trees in the Belle Haven neighborhood and the 
benefits of increased tree canopy. 

Page I-1.8



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 5 
ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/ Nash) to adopt Resolution No. 6639 overruling protests, ordering the 
improvements, confirming the diagram and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for Landscaping 
Assessment District for fiscal year 2021-22, passed 4-1 (Taylor absent). 

The City Council took a brief recess at 8:27 p.m. 

The City Council reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 

M. Regular Business

M1. Approve resolutions: adopting the fiscal year 2021–22 budget and capital improvement plan and 
appropriating funds; establishing the appropriations limit for fiscal year 2021–22; establishing a 
consecutive temporary tax percentage reduction in the utility users’ tax rates through September 30, 
2022; establishing the salary schedule effective June 20, 2021; and establishing citywide salary 
schedule effective July 4, 2021 (Staff Report #21-125-CC) (Presentation) 

Web form public comment on item M1. 

Assistant Administrative Services Director Dan Jacobson made the presentation (Attachment). 

• Michal Botrnik spoke in support of budgeting for rental assistance and extension of the City
eviction moratorium.

• N. Maraayah Roberts spoke on concerns related to City Council responses to public comment.
• Adina Levin spoke in support of the capital improvement project (CIP) budget.
• Rachel Horst spoke in support for an extension of the City eviction moratorium.
• Jason Ollarvia spoke in support of focusing on the needs of the community and increased action

on the housing element.
• Karen Grove spoke in support on funding housing and an extension of the City eviction

moratorium.
• Josie Gaillard spoke in support of increased funding for climate action.
• Pamela Jones spoke in support of bringing the bottom tier of wages to living wages.
• Diane Honda spoke in support of accelerating the reopening of gymnastics.

The City Council received clarification on additional full-time equivalents (FTEs) for sustainability 
(totaling two), dollar amount associated with City Council direction on June 8, 2021, and revisiting 
the utility user tax (UUT). 

The City Council discussed including 100 percent of educational revenue augmentation fund (ERAF) 
in the 2021-22 budget, decreasing public work FTEs from five to four, transportation capacity 
dedicated to CIP, the impact of additional payments to CalPERS, gymnastic facility reactivation, 
holiday lights, retaining the safe routes to school program, impacts to staff and hiring, and the 
Downtown street closure. 

The City Council continued this item to a special meeting on June 28, 2021. 

M2. Adopt Resolution No. 6638 authorizing extension of the solid waste and water rate assistance 
program to June 30, 2022, to provide financial relief on residents’ solid waste and water 
bills (Staff Report #21-135-CC) 

Page I-1.9



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 6 

Management Analyst I Joanna Chen introduced the item. 

• N. Maraayah Roberts spoke on concerns related to City Council responses and the need for
Menlo Park to help oppressed residents.

• Jason Ollarvia spoke in support of refocusing on City business that is under discussion and the
needs of constituents.

The City Council directed staff to return item if it runs over 20 percent of budget. 

ACTION: Motion and second (Wolosin/ Combs) to adopt Resolution No. 6638 authorizing extension of the 
solid waste and water rate assistance program to June 30, 2022, to provide financial relief on residents’ 
solid waste and water bills, passed 4-1 (Taylor absent).   

M3. Adopt Resolution No. 6643 accepting fiscal year 2021-22 State Supplemental Local Law 
Enforcement Grant (COPS Frontline) in the amount of $100,000; and approve a spending 
plan (Staff Report #21-136-CC) 

The City Council continued this item to a special meeting on June 28, 2021. 

N. Informational Items

N1. City Council agenda topics: July – August 2021 (Staff Report #21-126-CC) 

• N. Maraayah Roberts spoke on concerns of representatives of the residents of the City and the
demeanor of the City Council.

O. City Manager's Report

City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson reported out on the special June 28 and 29, 2021 meetings,
and July 13, 2021 meeting rescheduled to July 20, 2021.  City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson
also reported out on the upcoming housing element webinar on July 1, 2021 at 6 p.m.

P. City Councilmember Reports

P1. Appoint a representative to the Bay Area Water Supply & Conservation Agency and the Bay Area 
Regional Water System Financing Authority (Staff Report #21-128-CC) 

City Clerk Judi Herren introduced the item. 

City Councilmember Mueller described the duties. 

The City Council continued this item to a special meeting on June 28, 2021. 

City Councilmember Wolosin requested the addition of a video policy for advisory body meetings. 
The City Council discussed impacts when in-person meetings restart.  The City Council requested 
this be brought back as an information item for further discussion. 

City Councilmember Wolosin requested the addition of an item for an extension on the eviction 
moratorium.  The City Council received clarification on the eviction process and ordinance adoption 

Page I-1.10



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 7 

timeline. 
Q. Adjournment

Mayor Combs adjourned the meeting at 11:14 p.m.

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk

Page I-1.11



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 22, 2021 
Page 8 
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
On March 19, 2020, the Governor ordered a statewide stay-at-home order calling on all individuals living in 
the State of California to stay at home or at their place of residence to slow the spread of the COVID-19 
virus. Additionally, the Governor has temporarily suspended certain requirements of the Brown Act. For the 
duration of the shelter in place order, the following public meeting protocols will apply.   

Teleconference meeting: All members of the City Council, city staff, applicants, and members of the public 
will be participating by teleconference. To promote social distancing while allowing essential governmental 
functions to continue, the Governor has temporarily waived portions of the open meetings act and rules 
pertaining to teleconference meetings. This meeting is conducted in compliance with the Governor 
Executive Order N-25-20 issued March 12, 2020, and supplemental Executive Order N-29-20 issued March 
17, 2020. 

• How to participate in the closed session and regular meeting
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

menlopark.org/publiccommentJune22 *
• Access the meeting real-time online at:

Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 998 8073 4930
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:

(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 998 8073 4930
Press *9 to raise hand to speak
Written public comments are accepted up to 1-hour before the meeting start time. Written 
messages are provided to the City Council at the appropriate time in their meeting.

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto: 

Channel 26
• Online:

menlopark.org/streaming

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The 
instructions for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty 
accessing the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 

According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Page I-1.12

http://www.menlopark.org/


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 
Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

6/28/2021 
5:00 p.m. 
Zoom 

Special Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 957 0559 2015) 

A. Call To Order

Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 5:04 p.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Mueller, Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Attorney Tamar Burke, City 

Clerk Judi A. Herren 

C. Regular Business

C1. Approve resolutions: adopting the fiscal year 2021–22 budget and capital improvement plan and 
appropriating funds; establishing the appropriations limit for fiscal year 2021–22; establishing a 
consecutive temporary tax percentage reduction in the utility users’ tax rates through September 30, 
2022; establishing the salary schedule effective June 20, 2021; and establishing citywide salary 
schedule effective July 4, 2021 (Staff Report #21-125-CC) (Presentation) – continued from June 
22, 2021 

Assistant Administrative Services Director Dan Jacobson introduced the item. 

• Victoria Robledo requested a break down on the holiday light costs and commented on a lack of
transparency on the Community Engagement and Outreach Committee.

• N. Ollarvia requested information on equitable budget line items and applying that to the holiday
lighting budget.

• Jason Ollarvia spoke in opposition of the holiday lightening budget and requested detail on the
cost.

The City Council received clarification on Downtown maintenance staff and salaries, budgeting for 
lower than anticipated investment returns by CalPERS and use of strategic pension reserve fund, 
rehiring verse new hire onboarding process and priority on rehiring, and capital improvement 
projects (CIP). 

The City Council discussed excess educational revenue augmentation fund (ERAF) as fully funded 
assumption, permanent street closures on Santa Cruz Avenue, earmarking excess ERAF funds for 
education and safety, holiday lights allocation and referring celebration lighting to the Parks and 
Recreation Commission, emergency preparedness, transportation staff and transportation master 
plan (TMP), review the financial management organizational resiliency headcount, sustainability staff 
request, user utility tax (UUT), safe routes to school, the classification of recreation coordinator, 
budgets for environmental impact report (EIR) to make some part of Downtown street closure 
permanent, gymnastics, and pay and equity. 

Page I-1.13



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 28, 2021 
Page 2 

The City Council took a recess at 8:20 p.m. 

The City Council reconvened at 8:45 p.m. 

ACTION: Motion and second (Wolosin/ Combs) to approve resolutions as amended: adopting the fiscal 
year 2021–22 budget including amendments and addendums updates made by the City Council 
(attachment) and capital improvement plan and appropriating funds; establishing the appropriations limit for 
fiscal year 2021–22; establishing a consecutive temporary tax percentage reduction in the utility users’ tax 
rates through September 30, 2022; establishing the salary schedule effective June 20, 2021; and 
establishing citywide salary schedule effective July 4, 2021, passed 4-1 (Taylor dissenting). 

C2. Adopt Resolution No. 6643 accepting fiscal year 2021-22 State Supplemental Local Law 
Enforcement Grant (COPS Frontline) in the amount of $100,000; and approve a spending 
plan (Staff Report #21-136-CC) – continued from June 22, 2021 

Police Chief Dave Norris made the presentation (Attachment). 

• Jason Ollarvia requested statistics on Taser deployment and in support of reallocating these
funds to police reform.

• N. Ollarvia spoke in support of the budget addressing equity and requested clarification on the
need for funding Tasers.

The City Council received clarification on Taser deployment statistics and defibrillators equipped in 
police vehicles. 

The City Council discussed public outreach and how to reimagine policing and a subcommittee to 
work with police chief on police reform. 

ACTION: Motion and second (Combs/ Taylor) to adopt Resolution No. 6643 accepting fiscal year 2021-22 
State Supplemental Local Law Enforcement Grant (COPS Frontline) in the amount of $100,000; approve a 
spending plan, staff to provide monthly Taser and license plate reader reports to the City Council, and to 
equip defibrillators in all marked police vehicles, passed 4-1 (Nash dissenting). 

D. City Councilmember Reports

D1. Appoint a representative to the Bay Area Water Supply & Conservation Agency and the Bay Area 
Regional Water System Financing Authority (Staff Report #21-128-CC) – continued from June 
22, 2021 

ACTION: Motion and second (Taylor/ Wolosin) to appoint Mayor Combs to the Bay Area Water Supply & 
Conservation Agency and the Bay Area Regional Water System Financing Authority with a term that ending 
June 30, 2025, passed unanimously.  

City Councilmember Taylor reported out on One Shoreline Climate resiliency district, Menlo Park 
Community Center subcommittee and Community Amenities subcommittee meetings.  City 
Councilmember Taylor also requested the addition of an agenda item to relocate senior center 
interim services to the Boys and Girls Club on Pierce Road.  The Mayor provided direction for staff 
to work with the Council subcommittee to further explore. 

City Councilmember Mueller announced an event with the Governor. 

Page I-1.14



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 28, 2021 
Page 3 

City Councilmember Wolosin reported on the Assembly and State Senate extending the statewide 
eviction moratorium.  

Vice Mayor Nash reported on the redistricting meeting tomorrow, June 29, 2021. 

City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson reported on the housing workshop on Thursday, July 1, 2021. 

E. Adjournment

Mayor Combs adjourned the meeting at 11:01 p.m.

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk

Page I-1.15



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 28, 2021 
Page 4 
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
On March 19, 2020, the Governor ordered a statewide stay-at-home order calling on all individuals living in 
the State of California to stay at home or at their place of residence to slow the spread of the COVID-19 
virus. Additionally, the Governor has temporarily suspended certain requirements of the Brown Act. For the 
duration of the shelter in place order, the following public meeting protocols will apply.   

Teleconference meeting: All members of the City Council, city staff, applicants, and members of the public 
will be participating by teleconference. To promote social distancing while allowing essential governmental 
functions to continue, the Governor has temporarily waived portions of the open meetings act and rules 
pertaining to teleconference meetings. This meeting is conducted in compliance with the Governor 
Executive Order N-25-20 issued March 12, 2020, and supplemental Executive Order N-29-20 issued March 
17, 2020. 

• How to participate in the closed session and regular meeting
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

menlopark.org/publiccommentJune28 *
• Access the meeting real-time online at:

Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 957 0559 2015
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:

(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 957 0559 2015
Press *9 to raise hand to speak
Written public comments are accepted up to 1-hour before the meeting start time. Written 
messages are provided to the City Council at the appropriate time in their meeting.

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto: 

Channel 26
• Online:

menlopark.org/streaming

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The 
instructions for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty 
accessing the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 
According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Page I-1.16

http://www.menlopark.org/


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 
Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

6/29/2021 
5:00 p.m. 
Zoom 

Special Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 932 2768 7788) 

A. Call To Order

Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 5:09 p.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Mueller (arrived at 6:34 p.m.), Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, City Clerk Judi 

A. Herren

C. Study Session

C1. Consider establishing a hybrid independent redistricting commission for the upcoming redistricting 
process following the release of the 2020 Census results (Staff Report #21-137-CC) (Presentation) 

City Clerk Judi Herren introduced the item. 

GEOinovo Solutions Inc. Program Manager Luciane Musa, Project Manager Alex Sainz, and 
Demographer Jesus Garcia made the presentation (Attachment). 

• Helen Greico, Common Cause representative, spoke in support of an independent redistricting
commission.

• Pamela Jones spoke in support of an independent redistricting commission.

The City Council discussed hybrid and independent commissions. 

The City Council received clarification on differences of independent and hybrid commission and the 
processes and outreach, 2017 districting advisory commission process and public engagement, city 
attorney engagement with the various commissions, appointment process, and City Council powers 
and responsibilities in independent and hybrid. 

The City Council directed staff to return with a recommendation for an independent redistricting 
commission. 

D. Adjournment

Mayor Combs adjourned the meeting at 7:06 p.m.

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk

Page I-1.17



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 29, 2021 
Page 2 
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
On March 19, 2020, the Governor ordered a statewide stay-at-home order calling on all individuals living in 
the State of California to stay at home or at their place of residence to slow the spread of the COVID-19 
virus. Additionally, the Governor has temporarily suspended certain requirements of the Brown Act. For the 
duration of the shelter in place order, the following public meeting protocols will apply.   

Teleconference meeting: All members of the City Council, city staff, applicants, and members of the public 
will be participating by teleconference. To promote social distancing while allowing essential governmental 
functions to continue, the Governor has temporarily waived portions of the open meetings act and rules 
pertaining to teleconference meetings. This meeting is conducted in compliance with the Governor 
Executive Order N-25-20 issued March 12, 2020, and supplemental Executive Order N-29-20 issued March 
17, 2020. 

• How to participate in the closed session and regular meeting
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

menlopark.org/publiccommentJune29 *
• Access the meeting real-time online at:

Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 932 2768 7788
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:

(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 932 2768 7788
Press *9 to raise hand to speak
Written public comments are accepted up to 1-hour before the meeting start time. Written 
messages are provided to the City Council at the appropriate time in their meeting.

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto: 

Channel 26
• Online:

menlopark.org/streaming

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The 
instructions for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty 
accessing the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 
According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Page I-1.18

http://www.menlopark.org/


Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  7/20/2021 
Staff Report Number: 21-138-CC

Consent Calendar: Adopt Resolution No. 6644 approving grant of 
easement to the United States of America for 
construction of a water control structure within 
Bedwell Bayfront Park for the South Bay Salt Pond 
Restoration project and authorize the city manager 
to execute the easement agreement 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 6644 (Attachment A) approving grant of 
easement to the United States of America for construction of a water control structure within Bedwell 
Bayfront Park for the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project and authorize the city manager to execute 
the easement agreement. 

Policy Issues 
Improvements within city property, which are constructed, operated, maintained, repaired and owned by 
entities other than the City, require the conveyance of property rights. As such, the City Council must 
authorize a grant of easement to allow the proposed improvements to proceed. 

Background 
The South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project consists of the restoration and enhancement of 15,100 acres 
of former salt evaporation ponds to wetland habitat, making it the largest tidal restoration project on the 
West Coast. The project focuses on the restoration of three (3) salt pond complexes, which include Eden 
Landing in the East Bay, the Alviso pond complex extending from the city of Mountain View to the city of 
Fremont, and the Ravenswood pond complex located in the city of Menlo Park. Acquired in 2003, 
approximately 5,500 acres of salt ponds in the Eden Landing complex are owned and operated by the 
California Department of Fish and Game, while approximately 9,600 acres of the salt ponds in the Alviso 
and Ravenswood complexes are owned and operated by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The Alviso and 
Ravenswood pond complexes are part of the Don Edwards San Francisco Bay National Wildlife Refuge. 

In 2007, California Department of Fish and Game, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and California State 
Coastal Conservancy adopted a 50-year, multiphased approach to the restoration plan. The overall goal of 
the restoration effort includes the conversion of up to 90 percent of the salt ponds to tidal marsh, while 
retaining 10 percent as managed ponds. Construction on Phase 1 of the restoration project began in 2008 
and was completed in 2016. In the Ravenswood pond complex, the Phase 1 effort included the 
enhancement of 240 acres of salt ponds in Pond SF2 and the installation of interpretive displays and 0.7 
miles of trails near the Dumbarton Bridge. 

Planning for Phase 2 of the restoration project began in 2010. For the Ravenswood pond complex, the 
Phase 2 scope of work involved a number of ponds (R3, R4, R5 and S5) that are located south and east of 

AGENDA ITEM I-2

Page I-2.1



Staff Report #: 21-138-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Bedwell Bayfront Park. The ponds are surrounded by levees and are bordered by State Route 84 to the 
south, Ravenswood Slough to the east, and Greco Island and the San Francisco Bay to the north. The 
preferred alternative (shown in Attachment B) consist of the following elements: 
• Breaching the outer levee to open Pond R4 to tidal flows
• Lowering a section of the outer levee along Pond R4 to allow spillover during high tides
• Partially removing the levee between Ponds R5 and S5
• Raising of the levees between Ponds R3 and R4 and along the eastern side of Ponds R5 and S5
• Enhancing Ponds R5 and S5 to form shallow managed pond areas
• Installing water control structures between Ponds R3 and S5, R4 and R5, R3 and Ravenswood Slough,

and S5 and Flood Slough
• Creating habitat transition zones in Pond R4
• Establishing a new public access trail from the existing Bay Trail (from State Route 84 near Chilco

Street) to Bedwell Bayfront Park
• Constructing a viewing area with benches and interpretive panels along new public access trail

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service began work on the levee improvements in 2018 and has continued to 
pursue completion of that element of work as material availability and weather allows. In 2021, a total of four 
water control structures are planned for construction within the ponds along with levee work for Ponds R5 
and S5. Construction in 2022 will complete earthwork for levee improvements and habitat transition zones 
in and around Pond R4, excavate drainage channels, breach Pond R4, and complete the public access trail 
and viewing area. Construction on the project is anticipated to be complete by the end of calendar year 
2022. 

Analysis 
As shown in Attachment B, the proposed Phase 2 action for the Ravenswood complex identifies the 
construction of a water control structure to hydraulically connect Pond S5 with Flood Slough for the purpose 
of aquatic habitat management. This hydraulic connection will allow the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to 
manage water levels within Ponds R5 and S5 for the benefit of multiple aquatic species. The water control 
structure is proposed to be built across a portion of the Bedwell Bayfront Park entrance road and therefore 
requires an easement from the City. 

The United States of America is requesting that the City provide the necessary easement, in order to allow 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to proceed with construction of the water control structure. The negotiated 
easement agreement is provided as Attachment C. It should be noted that while the water control structure 
will be operated and maintained by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the land rights conveyed by the 
easement will be vested with the United States of America. 

The water control structure design consists of two 48-inch diameter pipes with combination slide/flap gates, 
rock rip rap outfalls, and maintenance access bridges on each end. Attachment D provides relevant plan 
sheets for the water control structure that show the proposed design, which has been developed by Ducks 
Unlimited under agreement with U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The attachment also includes City staff 
markups indicating the relative location of the water control structure within Bedwell Bayfront Park and the 
proposed easement area. 

Coordination 
The South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project improvements, including the proposed water control structure, 
have been coordinated with the Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Protection and Ecosystem 

Page I-2.2



Staff Report #: 21-138-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Restoration project and the City’s upcoming Bedwell Bayfront Park Entrance Improvements project. 
Additionally, the project has been coordinated with the potential Menlo Park SAFER Bay project, should 
funding be awarded via the City’s pending Federal Emergency Management Agency Building Resilient 
Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant application. 

Nothing in the proposed easement agreement precludes any of these projects from proceeding or makes 
them more difficult to implement in the future. It would provide more flood protection to the area in the short 
term, as described further below. 

Construction 
Construction of the water control structure under the Bedwell Bayfront Park entrance road is anticipated to 
begin in the late summer or early fall of 2021 and be completed within four months. Under agreement with 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Ducks Unlimited will be responsible for procuring the project construction 
contractor and will provide construction management services. To minimize impacts to park users, 
representatives for the restoration project are coordinating with the City on the sequencing for construction 
of the water control structure in consideration of the ongoing Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood 
Protection project, which is currently under construction at the entrance to Bedwell Bayfront Park by the San 
Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District. The restoration project is also coordinating 
directly with the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District to minimize conflicts 
between the concurrent construction projects. 

Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Protection and Ecosystem Restoration project 
The proposed water control structure is an integral component to the success of the Bayfront Canal and 
Atherton Channel Flood Protection and Ecosystem Restoration project, which is designed to temporarily 
divert stormwater from Bayfront Canal to Ponds R5 and S5 during storm events that are concurrent with 
high tides in Flood Slough. The proposed water control structure will allow operators to drain Ponds R5 and 
S5 in advance of forecasted storm events, thus increasing the capacity of the Ponds to retain diverted 
stormwater that would otherwise start to flood low-lying areas of Menlo Park along Haven Avenue and 
Redwood City along East Bayshore Road. 

Encroachment agreement 
Concurrent with the execution of the easement agreement for the water control structure, the City will be 
executing an encroachment agreement with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service for the placement of earthen 
fill material and landscaping for habitat improvements around the southern and eastern edges of Bedwell 
Bayfront Park, where it adjoins the restoration area. The encroachment agreement also allows for the 
placement of fill material, surfacing and signage associated with the new public access trail that will connect 
to the southeastern corner of Bedwell Bayfront Park. The encroachment agreement does not require City 
Council action and is provided as Attachment E for reference. 

Impact on City Resources 
Funding for staff time to develop and review the easement and encroachment agreements, as well as 
coordinate between adjacent construction projects, is available within the approved capital improvement 
program budgets for the Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Protection and Ecosystem Restoration 
and SAFER Bay projects. 

Environmental Review 
The Phase 2 Draft Environmental Impact Statement / Environmental Impact Report (EIS/EIR) was issued in 
July 2015 and included evaluation of the proposed water control structure. The City provided comments on 

Page I-2.3



Staff Report #: 21-138-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

the Phase 2 Draft EIS/EIR in October 2015. The Phase 2 Final EIS / EIR was issued in April 2016. The 
California State Coastal Conservancy, lead agency for CEQA, certified the Final EIS/EIR May 26, 2016. A 
federal Record of Decision approving the Final EIS/EIR was issued September 27, 2018. The restoration 
project has received permitting authorizations from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, National Marine 
Fisheries Service, Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Bay Conservation and 
Development Commission, and U.S. Army Corp of Engineers. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Resolution No. 6644
B. Exhibit – South Bay Salt Pond Restoration, Ravenswood Phase 2
C. Easement agreement with USA
D. Exhibit – Plan sheets for proposed water control structure
E. Encroachment agreement with U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Report prepared by: 
Eric Hinkley, Associate Engineer 

Report reviewed by: 
Chris Lamm, Assistant Public Works Director 

Page I-2.4



RESOLUTION NO. 6644 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
APPROVING GRANT OF EASEMENT TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A WATER CONTROL STRUCTURE FOR THE 
SOUTH BAY SALT POND RESTORATION PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, in 2003, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and California Department of Fish and 
Game acquired approximately 15,100 acres of former salt evaporation ponds in the southern 
portion of the San Francisco Bay, including an area known as the Ravenswood pond complex in 
Menlo Park, and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2008, work began on the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration Project, a multi-
phased effort to restore the salt ponds to tidal marsh and managed pond habitat, and 
 
WHEREAS, Phase 1 restoration in the Ravenswood pond complex included enhancement of 
240 acres in Pond SF2 and the installation of interpretive displays and 0.7 miles of public 
access trails, and 
 
WHEREAS, Phase 2 restoration in the Ravenswood pond complex includes improvements to 
Ponds R3, R4, R5 and S5, to create tidal marsh habitat, managed pond habitat, preserve western 
snowy plover nesting areas, and provide public access trail with viewing area and interpretive 
display, and 
 
WHEREAS, being necessary for the successful implementation of Phase 2 within the 
Ravenswood complex, United States of America requests an easement from the City to allow the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to construct and operate a water control structure between Pond 
S5 and Flood Slough, and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed water control structure is also an integral component to the success of 
the Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Protection and Ecosystem Restoration project, 
which will divert excess stormwater flows during high tide in Flood Slough and reduce frequent 
flooding within areas of Menlo Park and Redwood City, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Menlo Park City Council that:   
 
In consideration of the public access, habitat restoration, and surface water management benefits 
of the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project, Menlo Park does hereby grant an easement to 
the United States of America for the construction, operation, maintenance and repair of a water 
control structure within Bedwell Bayfront Park, and  
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 

ATTACHMENT A

Page I-2.5



I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twentieth day of July, 2021, by the following votes:  

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twentieth day of July, 2021. 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page I-2.6



Ravenswood Slough

All-
American

Canal

Flo
od

Slo
ug

h

Bedwell Bayfront Park
(CLOSED LANDFILL)

Greco
Island

To Dumbarton Bridge

San
Francisco

Bay

Fence Bounding
Phase 2 Trail

S57 ACRES

Je f fe rs on C t

C o n s t i t u t i o n
D r

Ch
r y s

l e r
Dr

Haven Ave

J e f f e r s o n  
D r

C h i l c o S t

Ne
t w

or
k

C i r

In d e p e n d e n c e  D r

Bo
ha

nn
on

 
D r

Hami lt on Ave

University Ave

114

84

84

101

Cargill pipeline
and 10-ft wide fee
ownership strip

Fence

R4
295 ACRES

R3
270 ACRES

S5 30 ACRES

R5 30 ACRES

C o m m o n w e a l t h  D r

Ma
rs

h

R d

Gate & Sign

Gate & Sign

Figure 3d
Phase 2 Proposed Action - Ravenswood Ponds

Proposed breach

Proposed water control structure

Viewing platform

! Existing viewing platform

Railroad
Existing trail
Phase 2 trail

Cargill pipeline
Fence
Levee Improvement

Levee Lowering
Levee Removal
Pilot Channel

Habitat Transition Zone
Habitat Island
Ditchblock

Tidal marsh
Managed pond
Pond boundary

LEGEND

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet
CALIFORNIA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM ZONE III
NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983
NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988
IMAGERY  Esri

*Pending property rights/easements

UR
S O

ak
lan

d C
A 2

/1
/2

01
7 U

SE
R e

li.p
op

uc
h P

AT
H L

:\P
roj

ec
ts\

GIS
\P

roj
ec

ts\
So

uth
_B

ay
_S

alt
_P

on
ds

_2
01

6\
02

_M
ap

s\
02

_M
ap

_P
rod

uc
tio

n_
an

d_
Re

po
rts

\R
efu

ge
Po

nd
s\

Bio
log

y\B
A\

Fig
3d

_R
av

en
sw

oo
d_

Po
nd

s.m
xd

South Bay Salt Pond Restoration Project

ATTACHMENT B

Page I-2.7



1 
SR #4813-6050-7628 v1 
08241-0001

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City of Menlo Park  
Attn: City Clerk 
701 Laurel St. 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

The undersigned declares this instrument to be exempt 
from Recording Fees (Govt. Code § 27383) and 
Documentary Transfer Tax (Rev. & Tax. Code §11922). 

(Space above this line reserved for Recorder's use only) 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Easement Agreement (“Easement”) is made as of the _____ day of __________ 2021 (“Effective Date”)
by and between the City of Menlo Park, a municipal corporation (hereinafter “City” or “Grantor”) and the United 
States of America and its assigns (“USA” or “Grantee”). 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

In consideration of the public access, habitat restoration, and surface water management benefits of the 
South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project, and without monetary consideration, receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby grants to the Grantee a nonexclusive easement 
(“Easement”), including ingress and egress, over and across a portion of the property described in Exhibit A 
(the “Property”) which easement is more particularly described and shown in Exhibit B (“Easement Area”), 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Such easement shall be for the construction, 
operation and maintenance and repair of a water control structure for aquatic habitat management within the 
former salt-production ponds commonly referred to as Ponds R5, S5 and forebay to S5 (“Improvements”).  
The Easement shall be held subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

TERM 

The Easement is granted in perpetuity. 

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE 

Grantee will provide services through itself or its Partners (defined below) for maintaining and repairing the 
Easement Area and all improvements constructed in the Easement Area, in good condition and repair in 
accordance with its legal obligations as a federal agency, including, without limitation, the water control 
structure (WCS-1), which consists of two 48-inch diameter HDPE pipe culverts, combination slide/flap gates 
at each end, and rock aprons (small areas of rip-rap) for erosion control at the outflow of each end. Grantee 
will provide services through itself or its Partners (defined below) for building and maintaining, in accordance 
with its legal obligations as a federal agency, the short gravel paths and small pedestrian access bridges of 
precast concrete that lead from the paved entry road into Bedwell Bayfront Park to the ends above each 
pipe culvert. 

ATTACHMENT C

Page I-2.8



 
 

2 
SR #4813-6050-7628 v1 
08241-0001  

 
Damages to the Property:   
If any portion of the Property is damaged by the Grantee, its officers’, agents’, employees’ and/ or 
contractors’ actions in gaining access to the Easement, constructing Improvements, or for purposes of 
repair, maintenance, connection, or for any other purpose, then the Grantee shall provide services for the 
reasonable repair of such damage including replacement or repair any portion of the Property, damaged by 
the Grantee, as reasonably as possible, to the conditions that existed prior to the damage occurring, 
reasonable wear and tear excepted.  If the Grantee undertakes any repair on any portion of the Property, the 
Grantee’s work shall conform to applicable standards of the construction industry.   
 
NONEXCLUSIVE EASEMENT 

 
The Easement is nonexclusive.  Grantor retains the right to make any use of the Easement Area, including 
the right to grant concurrent easements on, over, or under the Easement Area to third parties, provided such 
use or uses do not unreasonably interfere with Grantee’s use and enjoyment of the Easement.  The 
Easement granted herein shall have priority over any subsequently granted easement to a third party.  
 
Grantor reserves to itself the continued use of the Easement Area consistent with the terms of the preceding 
paragraph.  Grantor agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, not to erect, place or maintain, nor to 
permit the erection, placement, or maintenance of, any buildings, structures, or similar improvements on the 
Easement Area that would interfere with Grantee’s and the public’s ability to use the Easement as set forth 
herein.  
 

ENCROACHMENTS 

 
The Easement is subject to all existing encroachments of utilities and improvements on, over, and under the 
Easement Area, and to all future encroachments of utilities and improvements constructed or installed on or 
around the Easement Area, provided such future encroachments do not unreasonably interfere with 
Grantee’s use and enjoyment of the easement.  
 

NOTICE 

 
Any notices served hereunder or by law shall be deemed to be served by personally delivering or mailing the 
notice, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 
 
  City:  City of Menlo Park 
    Attn: Public Works Director 
    701 Laurel Street 
    Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 
  USA:               San Francisco Bay National Wildlife Refuge Complex 

Attn: Refuge Complex Manager 
1 Marshlands Road 
Fremont, CA, 94555 

     
Notice mailed as provided herein shall be deemed given upon receipt of the notice, unless such notice was 
rejected by the intended recipient and returned to the sender, in which event it shall be deemed served 72 
hours after deposit in the mail.  Notice given in any other manner shall be deemed given and received upon 
actual receipt.  Each Party shall have the right to revise its address for notice by delivering a notice (in 
accordance with the terms of this Section) to the other Party. 
 

Page I-2.9



 
 

3 
SR #4813-6050-7628 v1 
08241-0001  

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Federal Tort Claims Act. The Grantee agrees to cooperate, to the extent allowed by law, in the submission 
of claims pursuant to the Federal Tort Claims Act against the United States for personal injuries or property 
damage resulting from the negligent or wrongful act or omission of any employee of the United States while 
acting within the scope of his or her employment, arising out of this Agreement.  

Copy of Easement. Any Partners (defined as construction contractors, construction monitors, and private 
companies or private non-profit organizations working onsite and under separate contractual agreements 
with the USA) working for the USA under a partnership agreement in assisting the USA with work on the 
USA lands for which access is provided to the USA under this Easement will be given a copy of the 
Easement.  

Notification of Partners. Under the terms of this Easement, USA shall notify its Partners by providing a copy 
of the Easement Agreement and being made aware that the USA’s or the Partner’s use of the Easement is 
conditional on the following indemnification.  

Indemnification by Partners. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, USA shall require its Partners to 
the maximum extent permitted by law, to indemnify, protect, defend and hold City harmless from and against 
claims arising out of or in connection with any labor performed on the Property by, or at the request or for the 
benefit of, USA, construction of the Improvements, and/or any other rights and obligations conferred by this 
Agreement.   

USA shall, to the maximum extent permitted by law, require any Partners to indemnify, protect, defend and 
hold City harmless against claims, losses, costs (including attorneys’ fees and costs), liabilities and damages 
resulting from the failure of any of USA’s Partners, consultants, contractors or subcontractors, to comply with 
the insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit C, USFWS Partner Agreement.  

Insurance. To the extent any Partners working for the USA under a partnership agreement in assisting the 
USA with work on the USA’s property and uses the Easement Area, USA shall require that Partners add City 
as an additional insured and provide City with the insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit C. 

Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 
of California and the United States of America, as applicable.  
 
Authorization. Each signatory to this Agreement warrants that he or she has full authority to execute this 
Agreement on behalf of and thus bind the individual, or entity represented. 
 
Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors, 
assigns, legatees, heirs, executors, administrators and estates of each of the parties. 
 
Title.  Grantor covenants and agrees with the USA that Grantor has full power and authority to convey the 
Easement. 
 
 

Attachments:   Exhibit A              Legal Description of the Property  
Exhibit B              Legal Description of the Easement / Plat depicting Easement 
Exhibit C              Insurance Requirements, in USFWS Partner Agreement 
 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]  
 

 

 

Page I-2.10



 
 

4 
SR #4813-6050-7628 v1 
08241-0001  

 

 

SIGNATURES 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunder subscribed their names the day and year indicated 
below. 
 

 

 

GRANTOR: 

 
CITY OF MENLO PARK: 

 
 
Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager   Date 
 
  
ATTEST: 

 

 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk     Date 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 
Nira Doherty, City Attorney     Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page I-2.11



5 
SR #4813-6050-7628 v1 
08241-0001  

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

State of California Code Section 27281 

This is to certify that the Secretary of the Interior, acting by and through his authorized representative, the 

Acting Realty Officer, California-Great Basin Region, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, hereby accepts on behalf 

of the United States of America, the real property described in the within Grant of Easement and consents to 

recordation thereof. 

___________________________        _________________________________ 

Date Michael Borkoski, Acting Realty Officer 

California-Great Basin Region   

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

Page I-2.12



 
 

6 
SR #4813-6050-7628 v1 
08241-0001  

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF                                                    ) 

On ____________ __, 20__ before me,                                                             , Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                                                                 , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature:
  

(seal) 

********************* 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF                                                    ) 

On ____________ __, 20__ before me,                                                             , Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                                                                 , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature:
  

(seal) 

 

 

Page I-2.13



EXHIBIT A 

LANDS OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK (Marsh Road Sanitary Landfill Site) 

All that real property situated in the City of Menlo Park, County of San Mateo, State of California more 

particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the northeast corner of that certain parcel conveyed by LESLIE SALT COMPANY to    

MENLO PARK SANITARY DISTRICT by deed recorded in Volume 1051 of Official Records of San Mateo 

County at Page 40: thence along the northerly line thereof, North 53° 19' 06" West, 1,310. 61 feet to the 

northwest corner thereof; thence along the northerly extension of the westerly line of said parcel, North 

1° 01' 38" East, 56.96 feet to the southerly line of Parcel G described in the deed from LESLIE SALT 

COMPANY to STATE OF CALIFORNIA, recorded in Volume 5426 of said Official Records at Page 109;  

thence along said southerly line South 47° 00' 52" East, 121.91 feet; thence continuing along said 

southerly line South 56° 02' 07" East, 173.6 feet; South 50° 29' 59" East, 745.2 feet; South 77° 39' 39" 

East, 163.8 feet; North 36° 03' 24" East, 70.8 feet; North 75 57' 50" East, 40.2 feet; South 12° 15' 53" 

East, 117.7 feet; South 80° 56' 00" East, 285.6  feet;  South 77° 05’ 33" East,  394.0  feet;  South 84° 50' 

57" East, 356.4 feet; North 77° 52' 54" East, 643.05 feet; thence South 0° 16' 11" East, 708.79 feet; 

thence South 1° 04' 49" West, 1,750.53 feet to a point on the easterly extension of the southerly line of 

Parcel B of that certain Parcel Map recorded April 18,1969 in Volume 7 of Parcel Maps at Page 44 of 

Records San Mateo county; thence South 75° 47' 22" West, 45.66 feet to a point on the southerly 

extension of the easterly line of said Parcel B distant thereon South 1° 16' 36'' West, 12.00 feet from said 

southeast corner; thence North 88° 58' 22" West, 1646.33 feet; thence South 1° 09' 44" West, 940.65 

feet to a point on the easterly extension of the southerly line of Parcel A of the last mentioned Parcel 

Map; thence along said extension North 88° 58' 22" West, 73.00 feet; thence along the southerly line of 

Parcel A of last mentioned Parcel Map, North 88° 58' 22" West, 1175.97 feet to the southwest corner of 

Parcel A of the last mentioned Parcel Map; thence North 27° 20' 12" West, 60.0 feet to the general 

westerly Iine of that 60 foot wide road easement first described in the Grant of Easement from LESLIE 

SALT COMPANY to MENLO PARK SANITARY DISTRICT, Recorded in Volume 1878 of Official Records of 

San Mateo county at Page 673; thence along said westerly line, North 62° 39' 48" East, 247.91 feet; 

North 28° 34' 01" East, 205.87 feet; North 14° 05' 12" West, 200.41  feet  to  the southwest corner of 

Parcel 1 of that certain Parcel Map recorded in Volume 21 of Parcel Maps at Page 21, Records of San 

Mateo County; thence along the southwesterly line of said Parcel 1, North 14° 05' 12" West, 217.01 feet; 

thence North 1° 24' 10" East,  2117.30  feet  to a point on the southeasterly corner of that certain parcel 

conveyed by LESLIE SALT COMPANY to MENLO PARK SANITARY DISTRICT by deed recorded in Volume 

1051 of Official records of San Mateo County at page 40; thence along the southerly line of said parcel 

South 88° 58' 22" East, 1064.94 feet to the southeasterly corner of  said  parcel; "thence along the 

easterly line of said parcel North 1° 01' 38" East, 435.97 feet to the point of beginning.  

Containing 164.25 acres, more or less. 

The California Coordinate System, Zone III as shown on that Parcel Map recorded April 18, 1969, in 

Volume 7, of Parcel Maps page 44, San Mateo County Records, was used as the basis or bearings for the 

above descriptions. All distances are grid distances. To obtain ground distances, multiply the grid 

distance by 1.0000600. 

 

Page I-2.14



  March 1, 2021 

BKF No. 2020-0958 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

STORM DRAIN EASEMENT 

 

All that certain real property situate in the City of Menlo Park, County of San 

Mateo, State of California, described as follows: 

 

Being a portion of the Lands of the City of Menlo Park as described in that certain 

Corporation Grant Deed filed for record on March 20, 1975 in Volume 6803 at 

Page 144, Official records of said County, and being a portion of Parcel 5 of the 

Lands of the City of Menlo Park, as described in that certain Corporation Grant 

Deed filed for record on December 30, 1977 in in Volume 7702 at Page 275, 

Official records of said County, and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at the southwesterly terminus of that line labeled as “N28°34'01"E 

205.88’” as shown on that certain Record of Survey entitled “R/S NO. 1917” filed 

for record on August 22, 2008 in Book 32 of LLS Maps at pages 13 through 21, 

Official records of said County, said point being a common corner of said Lands 

of City of Menlo Park and the Lands of Cargill, being a Portion of Parcel 4 as 

shown on said map, 

 

Thence leaving said common corner and along the common line of said Lands of 

City of Menlo Park and said Lands of Cargill Inc. as shown on said map, South 

62°39'48" West, 15.00 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING of this 

description; 

 

Thence leaving said common line South 27°04'05" East, 185.27 feet to a point on 

the common line of said Lands of City of Menlo Park and the Lands of United 

States of America as described in that certain Grant Deed filed for record on 

March 6, 2003 as Document No. 2003-058900, Official records of said County; 

 

Thence along said common line North 88°58'22" West, 57.74 feet to a common 

corner of said Lands of United States of America and said Lands of Cargill Inc. as 

shown on said map; 

 

Thence leaving said common corner and along the common line of said Lands of 

City of Menlo Park and said Lands of Cargill Inc., North 88°58'22" West, 10.28 

feet; 

 

Exhibit B

Page I-2.15



March 1, 2021 

BKF No. 2020-0958 

Page 2 of 3 

Thence leaving said common line, North 27°04'05" West, 152.96 feet to said 

common line of said Lands of City of Menlo Park and said Lands of Cargill Inc. as 

shown on said map; 

Thence along said common line, North 62°39'48" East, 60.00 feet to the TRUE 

POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 10,147 square feet more or less. 

A plat showing the above described parcel is attached hereto and made a part 

hereof. 

This legal description was prepared by me or under my direction in conformance 

with the requirements of the Professional Land Surveyors' Act. 

________________________   __  03/01/2021 

David Jungmann, PLS 9267  Dated 

END OF DESCRIPTION 

Exhibit B

Page I-2.16



LANDS OF

CARGILL INC.

(5426 O.R. 126)

PORTION OF PARCEL 4

(32 LLS 13)

LANDS OF

CITY OF MENLO PARK

(6803 O.R. 144 & 7702 O.R. 275)

LANDS OF

CARGILL INC.

(5426 O.R. 126)

PORTION OF PARCEL 4

(32 LLS 13)

LANDS OF

U.S.A.

(DN. 2003-058900)

N

2

8

°

3

4

'
0

1

"

E

 

 

 

2

0

5

.
8

8

'

POINT OF BEGINNING

TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

S62°39'48"W   15.00'

LEGEND

O.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS

SQ.FT. SQUARE FEET

LOT LINE

EASEMENT LINE

EASEMENT AREA

N

6

2

°

3

9

'
4

8

"

E

 

 

 

6

0

.
0

0

'

S

2

7

°

0

4

'
0

5

"

E

 
 
 
1

8

5

.
2

7

'

N88°58'22"W

57.74'

10.28'

PORTION OF EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED BY

SEPARATE INSTRUMENT

PORTION OF EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED BY

SEPARATE INSTRUMENT

N

2

7

°

0

4

'
0

5

"

W

 
 
 
1

5

2

.
9

6

'

STORM DRAIN

EASEMENT

AREA = 10,147 SQ.FT.±

Job No.

By Chkd. Date

Subject

OF

255 SHORELINE DR.,

SUITE 200

REDWOOD CITY, CA 94065

(650) 482-6300

www.bkf.com

EXHIBIT B

Exhibit B

Page I-2.17



Exhibit C

Page I-2.18



Exhibit C

Page I-2.19



Exhibit C

Page I-2.20



Exhibit C

Page I-2.21



Exhibit C

Page I-2.22



Exhibit C

Page I-2.23



Exhibit C

Page I-2.24



Exhibit C

Page I-2.25



Exhibit C

Page I-2.26



Exhibit C

Page I-2.27



Exhibit C

Page I-2.28



Exhibit C

Page I-2.29



Exhibit C

Page I-2.30



Exhibit C

Page I-2.31



Exhibit C

Page I-2.32



Exhibit C

Page I-2.33



Exhibit C

Page I-2.34



Exhibit C

Page I-2.35



PROJECT SITE

US-CA-515-2

Horizontal and Vertical Control:
Coordinates are State Plane 0403 California Zone 3 in US feet [NAD83], with
vertical in NAVD88.

N

LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

Ducks Unlimited, Inc.
Western Regional Office
3074 Gold Canal Drive
Rancho Cordova, Ca. 95670-6116
Ph. (916) 852-2000

Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

VICINITY MAP

SURVEY DATUM

Contour Interval:   1 Foot
(Existing ground surface: D.U. survey & 2010 U.S.G.S. Lidar)
Aerial Photos:   2016 NAIP, Google

Parcel lines shown hereon represent approximate Assessor's parcel lines and
ownership data (Does not indicate surveyed property boundaries)

MAP DATA

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT DIRECTORY

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG
Utility Notification Center

1 Cover Sheet
2 Definitions & Legend
3 Site Overview
4 Plan & Profile - WCS-1
5 Plan & Profile - WCS-2 & WCS 3
6 Plan & Profile - WCS-4
7 Details - WCS General
8 Details - WCS General
S1 WCS-1 General Plan
S2 WCS-1 Foundation Plan
S3 WCS-2 & WCS-3 General Plans
S4 WCS-2 & WCS-3 Foundation Plans
S5 WCS-4 General Plan
S6 WCS-4 Foundation Plan
S7 Details - One-Pipe Maintenance Bridge
S8 Details - Two-Pipe Maintenance Bridge
S9 Details - WCS Girder
S10 Details - WCS General
S11 Bearing Pad Details
S12 Details - Cable Railing

C A L I F O R N I A

See Location Map

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.APPROVED BY:
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

1 of 20

BID SET
US-CA-515-2 5/14/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT POND
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

SC

JS

DU

SOUTH BAY SALT POND
RESTORATION PROJECT

RAVENSWOOD PONDS
WATER CONTROL STRUCTURES

µ

6/30/23

ATTACHMENT D

Page I-2.36



Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 400 800
FEET

N

G
R

ID
 N

O
R

TH

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

3 of 20

BID SET
US-CA-515-2 5/14/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT POND
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

SITE OVERVIEW

SC

JS

DU

SAN FRANCISCO BAY

POND R4

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK

GRECO ISLAND

POND R5

POND R3
POND S5

POND S5
FOREBAY

FL
O

O
D

 S
LO

U
G

H

ALL AMERICAN CANAL

RA
VE

NS
W

O
O

D
SL

O
U

G
H

STATE ROUTE 84

M
AR

SH
 R

OA
D

INDEPENDANCE DRIVE

HIGHWAY 101

W
IL

LO
W

RO
A

D

POND R4 BREACH & DITCH BLOCK
(BY OTHERS)POND R4 LEVEE LOWERING

(BY OTHERS)

ALL AMERICAN CANAL LEVEE IMPROVEMENT
& HABITAT TRANSITION ZONE

(BY OTHERS)

POND R4 PILOT CHANNELS
(BY OTHERS)

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK
HABITAT TRANSITION ZONE
(BY OTHERS)

WCS-04
(SEE SHEET 6)

WCS-03
(SEE SHEET 5)POND R5 / S5 LEVEE LOWERING

(BY OTHERS)

POND R5 / S5
LEVEE LOWERING

(BY OTHERS)

POND S5 LEVEE LOWERING
(BY OTHERS)

WCS-01
(SEE SHEET 4)

WCS-02
(SEE SHEET 5)

DEMO EX WCS

CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS ROUTE POND R3 LEVEE LOWERING

(BY OTHERS)

TEMPORARY ACCESS
ROAD REGRADE

(BY OTHERS)

REGRADE
(BY OTHERS)

EX LEVEE STRAIGHTENING
& DITCH FILL
(BY OTHERS)

POND S5 / S5 FOREBAY
LEVEE IMPROVEMENT

(BY OTHERS)

6/30/23

Location of Work

Page I-2.37



0+00 1+00 2+00 2+61

C/L ALIGNMENT AT END OF PIPE
Northing=2004242.5600
Easting=6074914.1169

C/L ALIGNMENT AT END OF PIPE
Northing=2004073.3712
Easting=6075000.5759

PROFILE - WCS-1 (Sta. 0+00.00 to Sta. 2+61.27)

Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

VERTICAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

4 of 20

BID SET
US-CA-515-2 5/14/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT POND
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

PLAN & PROFILE - WCS-1

SC

JS

DU

N

GRID NORTH

WCS-1 CL ALIGNMENT PLAN & PROFILE

PROFILE

PLAN

POND S5
FOREBAY

FL
O

O
D

 S
LO

U
G

H

PIPE TRENCHINGB
8

TWO-PIPE MAINTENANCE BRIDGE
(SEE SHEET S01)

WCS-1 CL ALIGNMENT

(2) 48" Ø HDPE PIPES
COMBINATON SLIDE /

FLAP GATE

COMBINATON SLIDE /
FLAP GATE

COMBINATON SLIDE /
FLAP GATE

(2) 48" Ø HDPE PIPES (LENGTH = 190')

IE=0.0

IE=0.0

EX GROUND (ASSUMED CHANNEL
BOTTOM - NOT SURVEYED AT THIS TIME)

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
AR

GI
LL

, IN
C.

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
AR

GI
LL

, IN
C.

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

INSTALL 18" RIP RAP

INSTALL 18" RIP RAP

INSTALL 18" RIP RAP

LA
ND

S O
F C

ITY
 O

F M
EN

LO
 PA

RK

LA
ND

S O
F U

.S.
A.

STORM DRAIN EASEMENT STORM DRAIN EASEMENT

1
7

1
7

1
7

COMBINATON SLIDE /
FLAP GATE

1
7

8' MIN

INSTALL 18" RIP RAP

EX MARSH ROAD

EX 4" SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN & WATER LINES
(LOCATIONS UNKNOWN, CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE)

EX 30" SANITARY DISCHARGE LINE

TWO-PIPE MAINTENANCE BRIDGE
(SEE SHEET S01)

TWO-PIPE MAINTENANCE BRIDGE
(SEE SHEET S01)

INSTALL 6" GRAVEL PATH

EX GRAVEL SURFACE

INSTALL 6" GRAVEL PATH AND FILL AS NEEDED
FOR APPROACH TO BRIDGE

INSTALL 6" GRAVEL PATH

TWO-PIPE MAINTENANCE BRIDGE
(SEE SHEET S01)

LOCAL EXCAVATION FOR
GATE INSTALLATION

INSTALL 6" GRAVEL PATH

2:1

FL=(-)1.0
FL=(-)1.0

EX 24" ABANDONED SANITARY
FORCEMAIN AT SURFACE

26.0' 26.0'

2:1
1.5:1

10.0'

LEVEE & TRAIL RAISING
(BY OTHERS)

FG=10.0

FG=10.0

TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD GRADING
(BY OTHERS)

FUTURE STRUCTURE &
HEADWALL (BY OTHERS)

FILL

CUT

2:1

1.5:1

2:1

1.
5:

1
1.

5:
1

REPLACE AND RELOCATE EX FENCE & GATE
(BY OTHERS)

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT AND SUPPORT ALL UTILITIES CROSSING TRENCH.
CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT PROPOSED UTILITY SUPPORT PRIOR TO BEGINNING
EXCAVATION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL ISOLATE EXCAVATION FROM FLOOD SLOUGH USING A
COFFERDAM.  COFFERDAM SHALL BE REMOVED AFTER CONSTRUCTION.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL PERMITS AND APPROVALS FOR WORK IN ROADWAYS.
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC CONTROL APPROVED BY LOCAL JURISDICTION.

NOTES:

INSTALL TEMPORARY EXCLUSION
FENCING OUTSIDE OF WORK FOOTPRINT

INSTALL TEMPORARY EXCLUSION
FENCING OUTSIDE OF WORK FOOTPRINT

6/30/23

Proposed easement area

Page I-2.38



1 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City of Menlo Park  
Attn: City Clerk 
701 Laurel St. 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

The undersigned declares this instrument to be exempt 
from Recording Fees (Govt. Code § 27383) and 
Documentary Transfer Tax (Rev. & Tax. Code §11922). 

(Space above this line reserved for Recorder's use only) 

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION OF IMPROVEMENTS  AT BEDWELL 
BAYFRONT PARK, MARSH ROAD, MENLO PARK, CA 

THIS AGREEMENT, dated this ____ day of ____________, 2021, is by and between the City of Menlo 
Park, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City", fee title owner (the “Owner”) of the real 
property commonly known as Bedwell Bayfront Park, and more particularly outlined in the legal 
description attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Property”), and UNITED STATES FISH AND WILDLIFE 
SERVICE, hereinafter referred to as “Service”, for the installation, use of, maintenance, and repair of (1) 
placement of earthen fill and landscape for habitat improvements and management on the adjacent 
properties, and (2) placement of fill and surfacing to connect to a public access trail on the adjacent 
property and installation of informational signage on the Property.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Service owns property adjacent to the Property. 

WHEREAS, Service is proposing to install, and place fill, surfacing and signage (“Facility”) as shown on 
Exhibit B (the “Encroachment Area) and incorporated into this Encroachment Agreement.   

WHEREAS, the Facility has been reviewed, and meets the satisfaction of, all necessary City Departments 
including approval from the Director of Public Works.  

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the City is requiring an Agreement for the ownership, liability, and 
maintenance of said Facility prior to the commencement of its construction.  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between the City and Service hereto as follows: 

CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Access. City agrees to the following regarding access to the Property within the footprint of the
Facility: 

a. City agrees to provide access to the Service within the footprint of the Facility.

ATTACHMENT E

Page I-2.39



 

b. Service agrees to provide services through itself or its Partners (defined below) to remove 
the Facility upon receipt of a 60-day advance notification from the City, at the City’s sole 
and absolute discretion.    

 
2. Repair and Maintenance. Service shall provide services through itself or its Partners (defined 

below) for any and all maintenance and repair of the Facility and the Property in the vicinity of the 
Facility and shall keep the Facility and the Property in good condition and repair, in accordance 
with the Service’s legal obligations as a federal agency, at all times. 

 
3. Damages to the Property. If any portion of the Property is damaged by the Service, its officers’, 

agents’, employees’ and/ or contractors’ actions in gaining access to the Encroachment Area, 
constructing improvements, or for purposes of repair, maintenance, connection, or for any other 
purpose, then the Service shall provide services for the reasonable repair of such damage 
including replacement or repair any portion of the Property, damaged by the Grantee, as 
reasonably as possible, to the conditions that existed prior to the damage occurring, reasonable 
wear and tear excepted. If the Service undertakes any repair on any portion of the Property, the 
Service’s work shall conform to applicable standards of the construction industry. 

 
4. Permits. Service agrees through itself or its Partners (defined below) to obtain all necessary 

permits from the City for maintenance, removal, repair or replacement of the Facility. Permits may 
include, but are not limited to: Planning Permits, Building Permits, or Engineering / Encroachment 
Permits.  Additionally, Service shall obtain all appropriate permits and consents required by 
applicable law before performing future construction work within the Encroachment Area. 

 
5. Remedies. In the event that Service fails to abide by the terms of this Agreement after fifteen (15) 

days prior notice, the City may enter and repair the Facility and/or Property, or, remove the Facility 
without right of reimbursement from the Service.  Alternatively, the City may also invoke provision 
1(b) above by providing the Service with 60-days advance notice.  

 
6. Grantee Liability. The Service agrees to cooperate, to the extent allowed by law, in the submission of 

claims pursuant to the Federal Tort Claims Act against the United States for personal injuries or 
property damage resulting from the negligent or wrongful act or omission of any employee of the 
United States while acting within the scope of his or her employment, arising out of this Agreement. 

 
7. Copy of Agreement. Any Partners (defined as construction contractors, construction monitors, and 

private companies or private non-profit organizations working onsite and under separate contractual 
agreements with the Service) working for the Service under a partnership agreement in assisting the 
Service with work on the Service lands for which access is provided to the Service under this 
Agreement will be given a copy of the Agreement. 

 
8. Notification of Partners. Under the terms of this Agreement, Service shall notify its Partners by 

providing a copy of the Agreement and being made aware that the Service’s or the Partner’s use of 
the Property is conditional on the following indemnification. 

 
9. Indemnification by Partners. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Service shall require its 

Partners to the maximum extent permitted by law, to indemnify, protect, defend and hold City 
harmless from and against Claims arising out of or in connection with any labor performed on the 
Property by, or at the request or for the benefit of, Service. 
Service shall, to the maximum extent permitted by law, require any Partners to indemnify, protect, 
defend and hold City harmless against claims, losses, costs (including attorneys’ fees and costs), 
liabilities and damages resulting from the failure of any of Service’s Partners, consultants, contractors 
or subcontractors, to comply with the insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
10. Insurance. To the extent any Partners working for the Service under a partnership agreement in 

assisting the Service with work on the Service’s property and uses the Encroachment Area, Service 
shall require that Partners add City as an additional insured and provide City with the insurance 
requirements set forth in Exhibit C, USFWS Partner Agreement.   

Page I-2.40



3 
 

 

 
11. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California and the United States, as applicable. 
 

12. Non-exclusive Use. Service shall not construct any new structures or other permanent 
improvements within the Encroachment Areas without City’s prior written approval. City reserves 
the right to continued use of the Encroachment Areas for any, and all, Public purposes, and or, 
utilities. 
 

13. Assignment. Service shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or 
the performance of any of Service’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the City.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies at law or in 
equity, including termination of this Agreement.  City acknowledges, however, that Service, in the 
performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub-contractors. 
 

14. Authorization. Each signatory to this Agreement warrants that he or she has full authority to execute 
this Agreement on behalf of and thus bind the individual, or entity represented. 
 

15. Covenants and Conditions. The covenants and conditions in this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, indemnification of the City, shall run with the land commonly known as Bedwell Bayfront 
Park / APNs 055-400-490, burden the Property and bind and inure to the benefit of the City and 
Service and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, 

but all counterparts shall constitute one instrument. 
 

  
 

Attachments:   Exhibit A           Legal Description 
Exhibit B           Site Plan / Encroachment Area for Fill, Surfacing and Signage 
Exhibit C           Insurance Requirements, in USFWS Partner Agreement 
 

 
[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]  

 
 

 

  

Page I-2.41



SIGNATURES 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunder subscribed their names the day and year indicated 
below. 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service: 

Signature Date 

Name 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nira Doherty, City Attorney Date 

CITY OF MENLO PARK: 

Nicole H. Nagaya, Public Works Director Date 

ATTEST: 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk Date 

Page I-2.42



EXHIBIT A 

LANDS OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK (Marsh Road Sanitary Landfill Site) 

All that real property situated in the City of Menlo Park, County of San Mateo, State of California more 

particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the northeast corner of that certain parcel conveyed by LESLIE SALT COMPANY to    

MENLO PARK SANITARY DISTRICT by deed recorded in Volume 1051 of Official Records of San Mateo 

County at Page 40: thence along the northerly line thereof, North 53° 19' 06" West, 1,310. 61 feet to the 

northwest corner thereof; thence along the northerly extension of the westerly line of said parcel, North 

1° 01' 38" East, 56.96 feet to the southerly line of Parcel G described in the deed from LESLIE SALT 

COMPANY to STATE OF CALIFORNIA, recorded in Volume 5426 of said Official Records at Page 109;  

thence along said southerly line South 47° 00' 52" East, 121.91 feet; thence continuing along said 

southerly line South 56° 02' 07" East, 173.6 feet; South 50° 29' 59" East, 745.2 feet; South 77° 39' 39" 

East, 163.8 feet; North 36° 03' 24" East, 70.8 feet; North 75 57' 50" East, 40.2 feet; South 12° 15' 53" 

East, 117.7 feet; South 80° 56' 00" East, 285.6  feet;  South 77° 05’ 33" East,  394.0  feet;  South 84° 50' 

57" East, 356.4 feet; North 77° 52' 54" East, 643.05 feet; thence South 0° 16' 11" East, 708.79 feet; 

thence South 1° 04' 49" West, 1,750.53 feet to a point on the easterly extension of the southerly line of 

Parcel B of that certain Parcel Map recorded April 18,1969 in Volume 7 of Parcel Maps at Page 44 of 

Records San Mateo county; thence South 75° 47' 22" West, 45.66 feet to a point on the southerly 

extension of the easterly line of said Parcel B distant thereon South 1° 16' 36'' West, 12.00 feet from said 

southeast corner; thence North 88° 58' 22" West, 1646.33 feet; thence South 1° 09' 44" West, 940.65 

feet to a point on the easterly extension of the southerly line of Parcel A of the last mentioned Parcel 

Map; thence along said extension North 88° 58' 22" West, 73.00 feet; thence along the southerly line of 

Parcel A of last mentioned Parcel Map, North 88° 58' 22" West, 1175.97 feet to the southwest corner of 

Parcel A of the last mentioned Parcel Map; thence North 27° 20' 12" West, 60.0 feet to the general 

westerly Iine of that 60 foot wide road easement first described in the Grant of Easement from LESLIE 

SALT COMPANY to MENLO PARK SANITARY DISTRICT, Recorded in Volume 1878 of Official Records of 

San Mateo county at Page 673; thence along said westerly line, North 62° 39' 48" East, 247.91 feet; 

North 28° 34' 01" East, 205.87 feet; North 14° 05' 12" West, 200.41  feet  to  the southwest corner of 

Parcel 1 of that certain Parcel Map recorded in Volume 21 of Parcel Maps at Page 21, Records of San 

Mateo County; thence along the southwesterly line of said Parcel 1, North 14° 05' 12" West, 217.01 feet; 

thence North 1° 24' 10" East,  2117.30  feet  to a point on the southeasterly corner of that certain parcel 

conveyed by LESLIE SALT COMPANY to MENLO PARK SANITARY DISTRICT by deed recorded in Volume 

1051 of Official records of San Mateo County at page 40; thence along the southerly line of said parcel 

South 88° 58' 22" East, 1064.94 feet to the southeasterly corner of  said  parcel; "thence along the 

easterly line of said parcel North 1° 01' 38" East, 435.97 feet to the point of beginning.  

Containing 164.25 acres, more or less. 

The California Coordinate System, Zone III as shown on that Parcel Map recorded April 18, 1969, in 

Volume 7, of Parcel Maps page 44, San Mateo County Records, was used as the basis or bearings for the 

above descriptions. All distances are grid distances. To obtain ground distances, multiply the grid 

distance by 1.0000600. 

 

Page I-2.43



PROJECT SITE

US-CA-515-2

Horizontal and Vertical Control:
Coordinates are State Plane 0403 California Zone 3 in US feet [NAD83], with
vertical in NAVD88.

N

LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

Ducks Unlimited, Inc.
Western Regional Office
3074 Gold Canal Drive
Rancho Cordova, Ca. 95670-6116
Ph. (916) 852-2000

Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

VICINITY MAP

SURVEY DATUM

Contour Interval:   1 Foot
(Existing ground surface: D.U. survey & 2010 U.S.G.S. Lidar)
Aerial Photos:   2016 NAIP, Google

MAP DATA

SHEET INDEX                     

PROJECT DIRECTORY

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG
Utility Notification Center

1 Cover Sheet
2 Site Overview
3 Grading - Pond R5/S5
4 Bedwell Bayfront Park HTZ
5 Bedwell Bayfront Park HTZ

C A L I F O R N I A

See Location Map

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.APPROVED BY:
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

1 of 5

EXHIBIT
US-CA-515-2 5/20/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT PONDS
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

SC

JS

DU

SOUTH BAY SALT PONDS
RESTORATION PROJECT

RAVENSWOOD PONDS

µ

Exhibit B

Page I-2.44



Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 400 800
FEET

N

G
R

ID
 N

O
R

TH

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

2 of 5

EXHIBIT
US-CA-515-2 5/20/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT PONDS
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

SITE OVERVIEW

SC

JS

DU

SAN FRANCISCO BAY

POND R4

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK

GRECO ISLAND

POND R5

POND R3
POND S5

POND S5
FOREBAY

FL
O

O
D

 S
LO

U
G

H

ALL AMERICAN CANAL

RA
VE

NS
W

O
O

D
SL

O
U

G
H

STATE ROUTE 84

M
AR

SH
 R

OA
D

INDEPENDANCE DRIVE

HIGHWAY 101

W
IL

LO
W

RO
A

D

POND R4 BREACH & DITCH BLOCK
POND R4 LEVEE LOWERING

ALL AMERICAN CANAL LEVEE IMPROVEMENT
& HABITAT TRANSITION ZONE

POND R4 PILOT CHANNELS

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK
HABITAT TRANSITION ZONE

WCS-04

CONSTRUCT CHAINLINK FENCE

POND S5 / R5 LEVEE &
TRAIL IMPROVEMENT

WCS-03POND R5 / S5 LEVEE LOWERING

POND R5 / S5
LEVEE LOWERING

POND S5 LEVEE LOWERING

WCS-01

WCS-02

PUBLIC ACCESS AREA

X

X

X

X

DEMO EX WCS

DEMO EX WCS

DEMO EX WCS

DEMO EX WCS & FENCE

DEMO EX WCS

CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS ROUTE POND R3 LEVEE LOWERING

REGRADE TEMPORARY
ACCESS ROAD

REGRADE SIDE
SLOPES

DEMO EX WCS

X

STRAIGHTEN EX LEVEE &
FILL DITCH

USFWS Boundary
Adjacent Boundary Lines
Cargill pipeline parcel

Centerline of Easement (Other)
Easement (Other)

PROPOSED Easement

LANDS OF CITY
OF MENLO PARK

LANDS OF
CARGILL INC.

LANDS
OF

U.S.A.

SEE SHEET 3

S
E

E
 S

H
E

E
T

 4
S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 5

Exhibit B

Page I-2.45



SECTION - ACCESS ROAD ORIGINAL HINGE (STA 27+50.00)

SECTION - ACCESS ROAD ORIGINAL HINGE (STA 7+50.00)

Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 100 200
FEET

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

N

G
R

ID
 N

O
R

TH

FINE GRADE AND ADD SAND/SHELL
TOPPING TO EXISTING LEVEE SECTION
FOR HABITAT ISLAND. FLATTEN SIDE
SLOPES TO 10:1

B
6

POND S5 / R5 LEVEE
IMPROVEMENT

POND R5 / S5 LEVEE LOWERING

POND R5 / S5
LEVEE LOWERING

POND S5 LEVEE LOWERING

B
4

REGRADE TEMPORARY ACCESS
ROAD TO 10:1 SLOPE TO POND
BOTTOM

LANDS OF LESLIE SALT CO.
LANDS OF U.S.A.

LANDS OF U.S.A.STATE ROUTE 84 RIGHT OF WAY

LANDS OF CITY OF MENLO PARK
LANDS OF U.S.A.

LANDS OF CITY OF MENLO PARK
LANDS OF U.S.A.

POND R5

POND S5

CHAIN LINK FENCE & GATE

WCS-2

WCS-1
A
4

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK

POND S5
FOREBAY

STATE ROUTE 84

POND S5 / S5 FOREBAY
LEVEE IMPROVEMENT

REGRADE TEMPORARY ACCESS
ROAD TO 10:1 SLOPE TO POND
BOTTOM

TRANSITION FROM SECTION "A"
TO SECTION "B"

B
-

TYPICAL SECTION
TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD GRADING

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

VERTICAL SCALE

0 5 10
FEET

EX GROUND

EX TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD

10:1

FINISH GROUND

CUT

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

EX GRADE BREAK

℄ARBITRARY CENTERLINE
LOCATION

GB=8.0

A
-

TYPICAL SECTION
TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD GRADING

2:1

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

EX GROUND

FINISH GROUND

10:1

3:1

℄ ARBITRARY CENTERLINE
LOCATION

CUT

EX TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD

GB=8.0

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

VERTICAL SCALE

0 5 10
FEET

USFWS Boundary
Cargill pipeline parcel

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

3 of 5

EXHIBIT
US-CA-515-2 5/20/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT PONDS
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

GRADING - POND R5/S5

SC

JS

DU

Work within City of Menlo Park

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK TRAIL

BEDWELL
BAYFRONT

PARK TRAIL

Exhibit B

Page I-2.46



0+00

1+002+00

Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 40 80
FEET

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 20 40
FEET

VERTICAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

NGRID NORTH

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

4 of 5

EXHIBIT
US-CA-515-2 5/20/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT PONDS
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK HTZ

SC

JS

DU

A5 B5

A
5

SECTION (STA. 3+00)
BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK HTZ B

5

SECTION (STA. 9+00)
BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK HTZ

POND R4

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK

DAYLIGHT TO
EX GROUND30:1

APPROX. ASSUMED
INTERIOR DITCH BOTTOM

HTZ FILL

TOP OF HTZ FG=9.0

℄

EX GROUND
HTZ FILL

TOP OF HTZ FG=9.0 30:1

℄

EX GROUND

APPROX. ASSUMED
INTERIOR DITCH BOTTOM

DAYLIGHT TO
EX GROUND

CONSTRUCT HABITAT TRANSITION
ZONE (HTZ) GRADING

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK TRAIL

DAYLIGHT LINE (TYP)
CONNECT TO EX GROUND

30:1

TOP OF HTZ FG=9.0

LEVEE R5-S5 EAST CL

IMPROVE EX LEVEE

CONSTRUCT NEW TRAIL
SURFACE & CABLE FENCE

30:1

30:1

17:1

M
A

T
C

H
LI

N
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 6

POND R4 PILOT CHANNELS

WCS-02

LANDS OF CITY OF MENLO PARK
LANDS OF U.S.A.

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

USFWS Boundary

Work within City of Menlo Park

Exhibit B

Page I-2.47



Unauthorized Changes & Uses
The engineer preparing these plans will not be responsible for, or liable
for, unauthorized changes to or uses of these plans. All changes must

be in writing and must be approved by the preparer of these plans.

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 40 80
FEET

HORIZONTAL SCALE

0 20 40
FEET

VERTICAL SCALE

0 10 20
FEET

NGRID NORTH

1

APPROVEDDATEDESCRIPTIONREV. NO.
REVISIONS

2

3

4

5

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.
CHECKED BY:

SURVEYED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:DATE:

5 of 5

EXHIBIT
US-CA-515-2 5/20/2021

SOUTH BAY SALT PONDS
RESTORATION PROJECT
RAVENSWOOD PONDS

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK HTZ

SC

JS

DU

A6 B6

A
6

SECTION (STA. 14+00)
BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK HTZ B

6

SECTION (STA. 21+00)
BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK HTZ

POND R4

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK

HTZ FILL
30:1

℄ ℄

TOP OF HTZ FG=9.0 TOP OF HTZ FG=9.0
DAYLIGHT TO

EX GROUND

DAYLIGHT TO
EX GROUND

APPROX. ASSUMED
INTERIOR DITCH BOTTOM

APPROX. ASSUMED
INTERIOR DITCH BOTTOM

HTZ FILL

30:1

EX GROUND EX GROUND

CONSTRUCT HABITAT TRANSITION
ZONE (HTZ) GRADING

BEDWELL BAYFRONT PARK TRAIL

DAYLIGHT LINE (TYP)
CONNECT TO EX GROUND

30:1

30:1

30:1

13:1

TOP OF HTZ FG=9.0

M
A

T
C

H
LI

N
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 5

LANDS OF CITY OF MENLO PARK
LANDS OF U.S.A.

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

⅊

LA
ND

S 
OF

 C
IT

Y 
OF

 M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K

LA
ND

S 
OF

 U
.S

.A
.

USFWS Boundary

Work within City of Menlo Park

Exhibit B

Page I-2.48



Exhibit C

Page I-2.49



Exhibit C

Page I-2.50



Exhibit C

Page I-2.51



Exhibit C

Page I-2.52



Exhibit C

Page I-2.53



Exhibit C

Page I-2.54



Exhibit C

Page I-2.55



Exhibit C

Page I-2.56



Exhibit C

Page I-2.57



Exhibit C

Page I-2.58



Exhibit C

Page I-2.59



Exhibit C

Page I-2.60



Exhibit C

Page I-2.61



Exhibit C

Page I-2.62



Exhibit C

Page I-2.63



Exhibit C

Page I-2.64



Exhibit C

Page I-2.65



Exhibit C

Page I-2.66



Library and Community Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   July 20, 2021 
Staff Report Number:  21-141-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Adopt Resolution No. 6646 authorizing the city 

manager to execute an agreement with California 
department of education to reimburse the City for 
Belle Haven Child Development Center operational 
costs in fiscal year 2021-22     

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 6646 (Attachment A) authorizing the city 
manager to execute an agreement with the California department of education (CDE) to reimburse the City 
up to a maximum $1,052,422 to offset operational costs at the Belle Haven Child Development Center 
(BHCDC) during fiscal year 2021-22.  

 
Policy Issues 
The recommended action is consistent with existing City policy and past practice related to BHCDC 
operations. The City of Menlo Park annually receives reimbursement from the State of California through 
CDE to offset the cost of BHCDC operations.  

 
Background 
The City of Menlo Park operates BHCDC to provide affordable child care and early childhood development 
services to families in Menlo Park and nearby communities. BHCDC is a licensed child care provider by the 
California Department of Social Services. The BHCDC program offers developmentally appropriate 
materials and activities supporting social, emotional, physical, and cognitive abilities to preschool aged 
children while providing essential child care services to working families. Children are provided nutritional 
breakfast, lunch and snacks daily.  
 
Enrollment fees are subsidized under the CDE Child Development Division (CDD) State Preschool 
Program. CDE funding requirements stipulate that all parents of children enrolled in BHCDC’s subsidized 
enrollment slots must be working, in school, in training, seeking permanent housing, actively seeking 
employment or incapacitated. All families of children enrolled in the BHCDC must meet income eligibility 
requirements. CDE funding reimbursements also may be applied toward the costs of resource materials, 
classroom supplies and small equipment.  

 
Analysis 
Per the CDE grant requirements, City Council must annually adopt a resolution to certify acceptance of the 
reimbursement funding and authorize the city manager to execute the grant agreement. A copy of the 
agreement is included as Attachment B. 
 

AGENDA ITEM I-3

Page I-3.1



Staff Report #: 21-141-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Under the terms of the agreement, CDE will reimburse eligible program operating costs at a rate of $53.69 
per child per day, up to a maximum of $1,052,422 in fiscal year 2021-22. The total maximum 
reimbursement amount is based on the typical maximum enrollment of 96 children. In a normal year, 
BHCDC’s typical enrollment capacity per state licensing requirements is 96 children. Due to health and 
safety restrictions made necessary by the COVID-19 pandemic, BHCDC maximum enrollment was reduced 
to a little more than half at a maximum of 52 children. This will affect accordingly the amount that can be 
reimbursed on a per-child basis, however guidance is beginning to change and may allow for numbers to be 
increased back to BHCDC’s original maximum of 96 children. The program is currently enrolling – new 
children are being phased into the program over time per standard best practice – and is expected to 
achieve the previous acceptable maximum allowable enrollment of 52 children within the next 4 – 6 weeks. 
With guidance beginning to change the program could possibly begin to safely increase numbers after the 
previous maximum of 52 children has been reached. As we continue to slowly raise enrollment numbers 
over the next few months, we anticipate that by January 2022 we could be back to full capacity of 96 
children.  
 
The CDE agreement further specifies a minimum days of operation (MDO) requirement of 244 days during 
the fiscal year and 19,062 Minimum Child Days of Enrollment (CDE.) The BHCDC program has sufficient 
staffing capacity and resources to meet all the criteria set forth in the agreement at this time 
In addition to the external funding received from CDE, the BHCDC also receives external funding from the 
USDA child and adult care food program, and some enrollment fees. Remaining operational expenditures 
are subsidized by the City of Menlo Park general fund, as authorized by City Council in the fiscal year 2020-
21 operating budget.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
Should the City Council adopt the resolution in Attachment A authorizing the city manager to execute the 
agreement in Attachment B, the City of Menlo Park will become eligible to receive up to $1,052,422 in direct 
reimbursements from CDE to offset the costs of BHCDC operations in fiscal year 2021-22. Due to 
enrollment limitations currently in effect due to COVID-19 potentially being lessened, it is likely that BHCDC 
will be eligible to receive the maximum reimbursable amount for the year. If the current enrollment 
limitations remain in place for the duration of the fiscal year, then the reimbursable amount could be as low 
as 50 percent of the maximum. If authorized by the City Council, the CDE reimbursement would offset a 
substantial portion of BHCDC program’s operating costs in the 2020-21 fiscal year.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution No. 6646 
B. CDE funding agreement 

Page I-3.2



Staff Report #: 21-141-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Report prepared by: 
Kira Storms, Acting Recreation Coordinator 
Theresa DellaSanta, Interim Assistant Director of Community Services 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Sean Reinhart, Library and Community Services Director 
 

Page I-3.3



RESOLUTION NO. 6646 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION TO REIMBURSE THE CITY 
FOR CHILD CARE SERVICES AT BELLE HAVEN CHILD DEVELOPMENT 
CENTER IN FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its 
City Council, having considered and been fully advised in the matter and good cause appearing 
therefore do authorize entering into local agreement number CSPP-1519 reimbursing the City 
up to $1,052,422 for child care services at the Belle Haven Child Development Center for fiscal 
year 2021-22, and that the person who is listed below is authorized to sign the transaction for 
the City Council. 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twentieth day of July, 2021, by the following votes:  

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twentieth day of July, 2021. 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT A

Page I-3.4



LOCAL AGREEMENT FOR CHILD DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

CONTRACTOR'S NAME:

DATE:
CONTRACT NUMBER:
PROGRAM TYPE:

PROJECT NUMBER:          

CITY OF MENLO PARK

CSPP-1519

41-2184-00-1

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

F.Y.
July 01, 2021

CALIFORNIA STATE
PRESCHOOL PROGRAM

21 - 22

This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named above. The Contractor agrees to comply
with the terms and conditions of the CURRENT APPLICATION; the SAN MATEO COUNTY Local Individualized Subsidized
Child Care Plan (hereafter the "SAN MATEO COUNTY PILOT PLAN") as most recently approved by the California Department
of Education; the GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (GTC 04/2017)*; the CALIFORNIA STATE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM
REQUIREMENTS*; and the FUNDING TERMS AND CONDITIONS (FT&C)*, which are by this reference made a part of this
Agreement. Where the GTC 04/2017 conflicts with either the Program Requirements or the FT&C, the Program Requirements
or the FT&C will prevail. The Contract must meet the specifications of the CALIFORNIA STATE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM
REQUIREMENTS except where the  SAN MATEO COUNTY PILOT PLAN allows for exceptions.

Funding of this contract is contingent upon appropriation and availability of sufficient funds. This contract may be terminated
immediately by the State if funds are not appropriated or available in amounts sufficient to fund the State's obligations under this
contract.

The period of performance for this contract is July 01, 2021 through June 30, 2022. For satisfactory performance of the required
services, the contractor shall be reimbursed in accordance with the Determination of Reimbursable Amount Section of the
FT&C, at a rate not to exceed $53.69 per child per day of full-time enrollment and a Maximum Reimbursable Amount (MRA) of
$1,052,422.00. During the term of this contract, the MRA may be adjusted through an Allocation Letter issued to the Contractor
by State Agency.

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
Minimum Child Days of Enrollment    19,602.0
Minimum Days of Operation (MDO) Requirement 244

Any provision of this contract found to be in violation of Federal or State statute or regulation shall be invalid but such a finding
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this contract. Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by this
reference and made part of this Agreement as if attached hereto. Amendments to any of these asterisked documents during the
term of this contract shall be incorporated by reference as of the date issued by State Agency without need for formal
amendment. These documents can be viewed at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/cd/ftc2021.asp

STATE AGENCY: CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

T.B.A. NO.

$

$

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for the period and
purpose of the expenditure stated above.

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BY THIS
DOCUMENT

PRIOR AMOUNT ENCUMBERED FOR
THIS CONTRACT

TOTAL AMOUNT ENCUMBERED TO
DATE

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE

B.R. NO.

STATUTE FISCAL YEARCHAPTER

OBJECT OF EXPENDITURE (CODE AND TITLE)

ITEM

(OPTIONAL USE)

FUND TITLEPROGRAM/CATEGORY (CODE AND TITLE)

TITLE ADDRESS

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNINGPRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING

BY (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)BY (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)
CONTRACTORSTATE OF CALIFORNIA

use only
Department of General Services

706

25451-2184

  1,052,422

2021-20222021

Child Development Programs General

Jaymi Brown,

Contract Manager

  1,052,422

6100-194-0001   B/A
30.10.020.001

SACS: Res-0000 Rev-0000

0656$

          0

ATTACHMENT B

Page I-3.5



Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

By (Authorized Signature)  

  

  

 
 

  

 

 

  
   

   

  
 

   
 

  

 

 

 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,
Page I-3.6



  
 

    
 

 
 

   
  

   
  

  
     

   

  
   

  
   

  
 

  
   

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

   

    
   

 
  

  
   

  
   

   
 

 
  

  
   

2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment
on the Agreement.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.) 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1,
2003.

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the
State of California.

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor. 
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108.

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably Page I-3.7

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


  

 

    
   

      
 

 

  

  

     
   

    
   

    

  
  

   
  

   
  

   

 
   

  

  
  

 
 

 

  
    

  
  

     

  
  

   

required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3. 

8. GENDER IDENTITY: For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees. If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification. 

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410): 

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment. 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 

Page I-3.8

http:10295.35


  
 

   
 

 
 

  
  

  

  

  
 

     

   
      

 

  
 

 
 

  
   

 

    

 
  

   
  

 
    

    
 

Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment. 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA: 

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled. 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 

8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 

Page I-3.9



 

 

California Department of Education 
Fiscal & Administrative Services Division 
CO-005 (NEW 4/2020) 

CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, if a bidder or proposer executes or 
renews a contract in the amount of $100,000 or more on or after January 1, 2017, the 
bidder or proposer hereby certifies compliance with the following: 

1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS: For contracts $100,000 or more, executed 
or renewed after January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the 
Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment 
and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code); and 

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts $100,000 or more, 
executed or renewed after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy 
against a sovereign nation or peoples recognized by the United States 
government, the Contractor certifies that such policies are not used in violation of 
the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment 
and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code). 

CERTIFICATION 
I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

1. Proposer/Bidder Firm Name (Printed): 

2. Federal ID Number: 

3. By (Authorized Signature): 

4. Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

5. Date Executed: 

6. Executed in the County and State of: 

Page 1 of 1 

Page I-3.10



RESOLUTION 

This resolution is adopted in order to certify the approval of the Governing Board to enter into 
this transaction with the California Department of Education for the purpose of providing 
child care and development services and to authorize the designated personnel to sign 
contract documents for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 

═════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of 

authorizes entering into local agreement number and 
that the person/s who is/are listed below, is/are authorized to sign the transaction for the 
Governing Board. 

NAME TITLE SIGNATURE 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS day of 2020, by the 

Governing Board of    

of County, in the State of California. 

I,   , Clerk of the Governing Board of 

, of  , County, in the 
State of California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted by the said Board at a  meeting thereof held at a 
regular public place of meeting and the resolution is on file in the office of said Board. 

(Clerk's signature) (Date)

Page I-3.11



City Manager's Office 

 

 City of Menlo Park   701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   7/20/2021 
Staff Report Number:  21-142-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Adopt Resolution No. 6647 modifying the City 

Council’s regular meeting schedule to include 
August 17 and 31, 2021   

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 6647 (Attachment A) modifying the City 
Council’s regular meeting schedule to include August 17 and 31, 2021.  
 
Policy Issues 
Ordinance No. 1074 (Attachment B) allows the City Council to adopt a different meeting schedule by 
resolution.  

 
Background 
On December 15, 2020, the City Council unanimously voted to introduce Ordinance No. 1074. At the 
January 12, 2021 City Council, the unanimously voted to waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1074. This ordinance codified the City Council’s current practice of conducting regular meetings on the 
second and fourth Tuesday of every month with a 5 p.m. start time 

 
Analysis 
The need to reschedule the July and August 2021 City Council meetings, sets the next regular City 
Council meeting for September 14, 2021. The Brown Act states that general public comment (e.g., 
comments on items not on the agenda or non-agendized items) is allowed at regular meetings and special 
meetings allow for public comment for agendized items only. Resolution No. 6647 will update the City 
Council meeting schedule to include August 17 and 31, 2021 as regular meetings, therefore allowing 
general public comment at the August 2021 meetings.  As a result of the rescheduling, the August 24, 
2021 regular City Council meeting will be cancelled.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources. 
 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM I-4

Page I-4.1



Staff Report #: 21-142-CC 

 

 City of Menlo Park   701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it is a minor change that will not result in any direct or indirect 
physical change in the environment.  

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution No. 6647 
B. Ordinance No. 1074 
 
Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page I-4.2



RESOLUTION NO. 6647 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ADDING AUGUST 17 AND 31, 2021 TO THE CITY COUNCIL SCHEDULE OF 
REGULAR MEETINGS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park ("City") wishes to add August 17 and 31, 2021 to the City 
Council schedule of regular meetings. 
  
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1074 allows the modification of the approved City Council meeting 
scheduled through the adoption of a resolution;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.04.010 of the Menlo Park Municipal Code reads as follows: 
 
2.04.010.  Regular Meetings – Days and time. ** 
A regular meeting of the City Council shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesday of every 
month commencing at five p.m., unless the City Council adopts a different schedule by 
resolution at the beginning of the year.  A regular meeting of the City Council may be canceled 
(i) by notice at a prior City Council meeting, or (ii) by notice to all of the City Council members of 
not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting and by posting a notice of cancellation 
at all locations where public notices are regularly posted by the City. 
 
** For state law as to council meetings, see Gov. Code sections 36805 to 36808, 54950 to 
65960. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK HEREBY 
RESOLVES: 
 
August 17, 2021, and August 31, 2021 shall be added as regular meeting dates to the 2021 
Schedule of Regular City Council meetings of the City of Menlo Park. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twentieth day of July, 2021, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twentieth day of July, 2021. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page I-4.3

ATTACHMENT A



ORDINANCE NO. 1074 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK AMENDING SECTION 2.04.010 OF 
CHAPTER 2.04 (CITY COUNCIL) OF TITLE 2 
(ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL) OF THE MENLO 
PARK MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park ("City") wishes to change the time when the City Council 
holds its regularly scheduled meetings and the methods for canceling a City Council meeting. 
  
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT OF CODE. Section 2.04.010 of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 
 
2.04.010.  Regular Meetings – Days and time. ** 
A regular meeting of the City Council shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesday of every 
month commencing at five p.m., unless the City Council adopts a different schedule by 
resolution at the beginning of the year.  A regular meeting of the City Council may be canceled 
(i) by notice at a prior City Council meeting, or (ii) by notice to all of the City Council members of 
not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting and by posting a notice of cancellation 
at all locations where public notices are regularly posted by the City. 
 
** For state law as to council meetings, see Gov. Code sections 36805 to 36808, 54950 to 
65960. 
 
SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLISHING.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days 
after adoption. The city clerk shall cause publication of the ordinance within 15 days after 
passage in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the city or, if none, 
the posted in at least three public places in the city.  Within 15 days after the adoption of the 
ordinance amendment, a summary of the amendment shall be published with the names of the 
City Councilmembers voting for and against the amendment.   
 
INTRODUCED on the fifteenth day of December, 2020. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular meeting of 
said City Council on the twelfth day of January, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Mueller, Taylor, Wolosin, Nash, Combs   
  
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
// 
 
// 

Page I-4.4

ATTACHMENT B



Ordinance No. 1074  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Drew Combs, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page I-4.5



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   7/20/2021 
Staff Report Number:  21-140-CC 
 
Public Hearing:  Hold a public hearing and consider any protests 

related to the collection of the stormwater 
regulatory fee on the tax roll; adopt Resolution No. 
6645 authorizing the collection of the stormwater 
regulatory fee on the tax roll at the existing rates to 
implement the City’s stormwater management 
program  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing and, if protests are not made by the property 
owners of a majority of the affected parcels, adopt Resolution No. 6645 adopting the stormwater regulatory 
fee report and authorizing the collection of the stormwater regulatory fee on the tax roll. 

 
Policy Issues 
Menlo Park Municipal Code Chapter 7.42 (adopted in July 1994, updated in March 2019) highlights the 
City’s stormwater management program, and Section 7.42.250 establishes a separate funding mechanism 
for the stormwater management program requiring the City implement the regulatory fee. Funds collected 
through the regulatory fee are used for administering the stormwater management program to ensure 
compliance and includes maintenance of storm drains and creeks. If the City Council does not adopt the 
resolution for the fee collection, the lack of adequate funding would impact the level of services required to 
maintain the storm drain system, and the City may not meet regulatory requirements. 
 
Health and Safety Code Section 5473 et seq. authorizes public agencies to collect stormwater regulatory 
charges on the tax roll in the same manner, by the same persons, and at the same time as, together with 
and not separately from general taxes. It also allows the City Council’s authorization to remain in effect for 
future fiscal years until fees are increased via a Proposition 218 process.  

 
Background 
Menlo Park property owners pay two types of stormwater related fees: a local regulatory fee applicable to 
the City only, and a countywide fee applicable to general program activities benefiting all agencies within 
San Mateo County (County.) The City authorizes the local fee for collection on the County tax roll, and the 
Countywide Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District collects the County fee. The following background 
information is specific to the local regulatory fee program.  
 
In 1991, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) notified the County and all 
incorporated cities within the County of the requirement to submit a municipal stormwater National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit application. As part of the permit process, all agencies were 
also required to implement a stormwater management program with the intent of reducing the sources of 
pollution from stormwater discharges that enter San Francisco Bay from urban and developing areas. The 

AGENDA ITEM J-1

Page J-1.1



Staff Report #: 21-140-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City began collecting the local fee in 1994, and the fee has remained the same for more than 20 years. 
 
In 2015, the RWQCB adopted the Municipal Regional NPDES Permit (known as the 2015 MRP) that 
regulates stormwater activities for various provisions, each with its own goals, tasks, schedules and 
reporting requirements. In February 2021, the RWQCB distributed a public review draft MRP (known as the 
MRP 3.0) with an expected effective date of July 1, 2022. 
 
On October 1, 2019, the City Council approved an agreement with Wood Rodgers, Inc. to develop the City’s 
Stormwater Master Plan which will serve as the strategic planning guide for compliance with regulatory 
requirements, maintain existing infrastructure, and identify future stormwater system upgrades and 
improvements over the next 25 years. Staff expects a draft of the plan to be completed in 2022. 

 
Analysis 
Fees currently collected do not fully cover the cost to implement the program. In fiscal year 2020-21, the 
stormwater management program budget was $539,902 with the regulatory fee providing $339,221 in funds 
and stormwater business inspection fees providing an additional $63,000 in funds. The remaining expenses 
of $137,681 were covered by the carry-over in the program fund balance, which leaves $287,089 remaining 
in the program fund balance.  
 
The current annual local regulatory fee collected is based on a rate of $5.25 per 1,000 square feet of 
impervious area for each property in the City. Fees therefore vary per property, depending on the amount of 
impervious area associated with the parcel and its size. For single family homes in the Belle Haven and 
Willows neighborhoods, where parcels are typically smaller than others in the City, the annual fee averages 
between $16 and $18 per property. In central Menlo Park and in the Sharon Heights neighborhood, the 
annual fee ranges between $20 and $26 per property. For a typical 5,000 square-foot downtown 
commercial property along Santa Cruz Avenue, the annual fee is $26 per property. 
  
Table 1 shows the proposed fiscal year 2021-22 stormwater management program expenditures, and Table 
2 shows the proposed budget for fiscal year 2021-22. 
 

Table 1: Stormwater management program 
Fiscal year 2021-22 proposed expenditures 

Staff administration and operating costs: City’s personnel and operating costs to implement the 
requirements of the NPDES permit including reporting, participating in the Countywide Technical 
Advisory Committee and subcommittees, managing storm drain efforts, and administering the street 
sweeping program. 

$306,191  

Stormwater business inspections: Contract to perform business inspections per the NPDES permit. $86,000 

Stormwater permit:  Annual NPDES permit fee paid to the RWQCB. $15,000 
Watershed outreach: City’s contribution to Grassroots Ecology for coordination of educational 
outreach, watershed planning and coastal cleanup day efforts. $17,000 
General and administrative overhead: City’s obligation to the general fund for finance, information 
technology and administrative services. $68,953 
Miscellaneous professional services: Stenciling of storm drains, updating the storm drain base map, 
geographic information services development, hazardous material permit, etc. $24,500 

Total $517,644 
 
 

Page J-1.2



Staff Report #: 21-140-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Table 2: Stormwater management program 
Fiscal year 2021-22 proposed budget 

Projected beginning fund balance $287,089  

Estimated revenues (based on impervious area per parcel) $340,673  
Estimated revenues (from business inspection fees to cover costs for 
inspections performed by EOA, Inc.) $86,000 

Estimated expenses $517,644  

Projected ending fund balance $196,118  
 
With a projected ending fund balance of $196,118 for fiscal year 2021-22, there may not be sufficient funds 
to fully cover program costs for future fiscal years. With the forthcoming adoption of the new MRP which 
may include new programs that the City must implement, and the stormwater master plan that will identify 
future upgrades and improvements to the stormwater system for the next 25 years, expenditures are 
anticipated to increase. 
 
Staff recommends beginning to collect the stormwater regulatory fee on the tax roll pursuant to Health and 
Safety Code section 5473 et seq. The stormwater regulatory fee report (Report) contains a description of 
each parcel of real property, which receives stormwater services from the City’s stormwater facilities and 
the amount of the stormwater regulatory fee for each of those parcels. The Report contains information 
regarding each individual parcel so it is not attached to this staff report but is on file with the City Clerk’s 
office and is available for review by the public upon request. Once the resolution is adopted, staff will 
forward the fee database directly to the County for preparation. 
 
Per Health and Safety Code Section 5473, the City Council’s authorization will remain in effect for future 
fiscal years as long as fees remain unchanged. After the new MRP is adopted and the Stormwater Master 
Plan is completed, staff will return to the City Council with more information and proposed next steps to 
secure sufficient funding for the stormwater management program. Increasing the regulatory fee would 
require the City to conduct a property-owner voting procedure in accordance with Proposition 218. 
 

Impact on City Resources 
Funding for the stormwater management program consists of the carry-over of unspent funds from prior 
years and revenues collected through the regulatory fee. If the City Council does not adopt a resolution to 
continue collecting fees on the tax roll, the impact on the City’s general fund would be $340,673 (the total 
projected revenues from the regulatory fee) in order to sustain the program in fiscal year 2021-22.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4.) Moreover, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
actions being taken by this Resolution may have a significant effect on the environment, and it is therefore 
exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting a legal notice in The Examiner, a local newspaper, June 25 and 
July 2, and posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

Page J-1.3



Staff Report #: 21-140-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Attachments 
A. Resolution No. 6645 
 
Report prepared by: 
Scott Jaw, Assistant Engineer 
Pam Lowe, Senior Civil Engineer 
 
Reviewed by: 
Christopher Lamm, Assistant Public Works Director 
 

Page J-1.4



RESOLUTION NO. 6645 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK TO 
AUTHORIZE COLLECTION OF A REGULATORY FEE ON THE TAX ROLL AT 
EXISTING RATES TO IMPLEMENT THE LOCAL CITY OF MENLO PARK 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, Section 402(p) of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) as amended by the 
Water Quality Control Act of 1987, requires that all large and medium-sized incorporated 
municipalities must effectively prohibit non-storm water discharges into storm sewers; and 
further requires controls to reduce the discharge of pollutants from storm water systems to 
waters of the United States to the maximum extent practicable; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park, in conjunction with all of the incorporated cities in San 
Mateo County, has prepared the Storm Water Management Plan, which has a General Program 
to be administered and funded through the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise 
Resiliency District, and a specific program for each city, to be administered and funded by each 
city; and 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park specific program includes those efforts and programs required to 
be undertaken by the City of Menlo Park to support and address its responsibility to regulate 
and enforce local pollution control components under the Storm Water Management Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council is authorized and/or mandated by Chapter 7.42 Storm 
Water Management Program of the municipal code adopted on July 12, 1994 (Ordinance No. 
859) and updated on March 12, 2019 (Ordinance No. 1055), and including the following federal
and/or state statutes:  the Federal Clean Water Act as amended in 1987; the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit Application Regulations for Stormwater Discharges; the
California Constitution, Article XI, Section 7 of the California Water Code Section 13002; and
Part 3 of Division 5 of the California Health and Safety Code, to impose a regulatory fee to
enforce the local storm water pollution control components of the San Mateo County
Stormwater Management Plan upon the businesses, entities, residents, and unimproved
properties of the City of Menlo Park; and

WHEREAS, in July 1994, the Menlo Park City Council adopted Ordinance No. 859, which 
established and levied the stormwater regulatory fee upon each premises or any portion thereof 
that receives or uses stormwater service from the City’s stormwater facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the stormwater regulatory fees were adopted in compliance with Health and Safety 
Code section 5471; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park has been collecting the stormwater regulatory fees on the 
tax roll pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 5473 et. seq.; and 

WHEREAS, the City prepared a written report entitled the Stormwater Regulatory Fee Report 
(“Report”), which contains a description of each parcel of real property that receives stormwater 
services from the City’s stormwater facilities and the amount of the stormwater regulatory fee for 
each of those parcels, computed in conformity with the stormwater fee authorized by Ordinance 
No. 859; and 

WHEREAS, the Report is on file with the City Clerk and available to the public; and 

ATTACHMENT A

Page J-1.5



 

 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on July 20, 2021, after duly publishing and posting all required 
notices, the City Council held a public hearing as part of a special meeting to consider the 
Report and heard all objections or protests to the Report, if any. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its 
City Council, having considered and been fully advised in the matter and good cause appearing 
therefore do hereby: 
 
1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct, and are hereby incorporated herein by this 

reference as if fully set forth in their entirety. 
 
2. That the Public Works Director for the City of Menlo Park is the authorized collection agent 

for the regulatory fees authorized and/or mandated by federal and/or state statutes, and is 
hereinafter empowered to collect, contract for collection, enforce, and/or institute other 
proceedings necessary for the collection of the regulatory fee. 

 
3. The City Council finds and determines that notice of the filing of the Report and of the time 

and place of the hearing thereon was published in accordance with Health and Safety Code 
Sections 5473.1. 

 
4. After hearing and considering all objections or protests to the Report, if any, the City Council 

finds that protest was not made by a majority of the separate parcels of property described 
in the Report and hereby adopts the Report. 

 
5. That the Public Works Director is hereby directed to file, or cause to be filed, the amount of 

regulatory fees as described and shown on the Report, attached as Exhibit “A," including the 
diagram shown on the County Assessor’s maps to be imposed and the parcels upon which 
such regulatory fees are imposed, with the County Auditor and/or the County Tax Collector 
of the County of San Mateo no later than early August of each applicable tax year. For each 
parcel upon which a regulatory fee has been imposed, the regulatory fee shall appear as a 
separate item on the tax bill and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the 
same manner as the general tax levy for City purposes. 

 
6. That the Public Works Director is authorized to enter into those agreements necessary to 

have the County of San Mateo perform the regulatory fee collection services required; and 
the City Council hereby authorizes the County of San Mateo to perform such services, and 
for the City to pay the County of San Mateo for the reasonable costs of those collection 
services so provided. 

 
7. The City Council finds that this Resolution is not subject to the California Environmental 

Quality Act (“CEQA”).  This action is not a project within the meaning of the CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4).  Moreover, it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the actions being taken by this Resolution may have a significant effect on 
the environment, and it is therefore exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of 
the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
8. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

Resolution No. 6645 
Page 2 of 4

Page J-1.6



 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twentieth of July, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twentieth day of July, 2021. 
  
 
 
 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk

Resolution No. 6645 
Page 3 of 4

Page J-1.7



 

Storm Water Management Program Regulatory Fee 
 
 

All Residential/Commercial/Industrial 
 
All residential/commercial/industrial properties and other non-residential properties shall pay 
$0.00525 per square foot of impervious area. 
 
Exempt from fee:  Federal, State, County, Flood Plain, and City Government parcels. 
 

Resolution No. 6645 
Page 4 of 4 EXHIBIT A

Page J-1.8



LOCAL STORMWATER FEE
Public Hearing – July 20, 2021

J1-PRESENTATION



 Funds collected are used for 
– Staff admin and operating costs
– Meet requirements of our Municipal Regional Permit
– General and admin overhead
– Miscellaneous professional services

 Began collecting fee in 1994 – The fee has remained the same for 
more than 20 years

 Fee: $5.25 per 1,000 square feet of impervious area
 Average fee ranges between $16 to $26 per property

LOCAL STORMWATER FEE

2



 Adopt Resolution No. 6645 authorizing the collection of 
the local stormwater fee, the fee will then be placed on 
the County tax roll

REQUESTED DIRECTION

3



THANK YOU



City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT  

City Council    
Meeting Date:   7/20/2021 
Staff Report Number:  21-139-CC 
 
Informational Item:  City Council agenda topics: August 2021 

 
Recommendation 
The purpose of this informational item is to provide the City Council and members of the public access to 
the anticipated agenda items that will be presented to the City Council. The mayor and city manager set the 
City Council agenda so there is no action required of the City Council as a result of this informational item.  

 
Policy Issues 
In accordance with the City Council procedures manual, the mayor and city manager set the agenda for City 
Council meetings.  

 
Analysis 
In an effort to provide greater access to the City Council’s future agenda items, staff has compiled a listing 
of anticipated agenda items, Attachment A, through August 31, 2021. The topics are arranged by 
department to help identify the work group most impacted by the agenda item.  
 
Specific dates are not provided in the attachment due to a number of factors that influence the City Council 
agenda preparation process. In their agenda management, the mayor and city manager strive to compile an 
agenda that is most responsive to the City Council’s adopted priorities and work plan while also balancing 
the business needs of the organization. Certain agenda items, such as appeals or State mandated 
reporting, must be scheduled by a certain date to ensure compliance. In addition, the meeting agendas are 
managed to allow the greatest opportunity for public input while also allowing the meeting to conclude 
around 11 p.m. Every effort is made to avoid scheduling two matters that may be contentious to allow the 
City Council sufficient time to fully discuss the matter before the City Council. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting.  

 
Attachments 
A. City Council agenda topics: August 2021 
 
Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM K-1

Page K-1.1



Through August 31, 2021

Tentative City Council Agenda
# Title Department Item type City Council action
1 Ratify successor MOU - AFSCME ASD Regular Adopt resolution
2 Ratify successor MOU - SEIU ASD Regular Adopt resolution
3 City attorney 6-month eval CA Closed Session
4 Closed Session: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION CA Closed Session
5 Closed Session: Unrepresented management CA Closed Session
6 710 Willow Road appeal of use permit denial for alcohol sales CDD Public Hearing Decide
7 Menlo Uptown major subdivision map (Appeals + map hearing) CDD Public Hearing Adopt resolution
8 2021 priorities and work plan quarterly report as of June 30 CMO Consent Receive and file
9 Approve EQC two year work plan CMO Consent Approve

10 CAP #1 - existing building electrification cost effectiveness study session CMO Study Session Direction to staff
11 Climate Action Plan Progress, GHG inventory update, and proposed amendments CMO Regular Approve
12 Confirm voting delegate for the League of California Cities annual conference (before 8/31) CMO City Council Reports Decide
13 Dissolve Housing Element subcommittee CMO Consent Decide
14 Pre hearing decision on appeal CMO Regular Direction to staff
15 Proclamations: Boy Scout Troop 222 CMO Proclamation No action
16 Redistricting: independent redistricting commission CMO Regular Direction to staff
17 SB1383 study session CMO Study Session No action
18 Approve contract for city manager recruiter CMO/CA Regular Approve
19 Recreation scholarship pilot program LCS Consent Approve

20 Adopt Resolution No. XXXX to reduce the posted speed limit in school zones consistent with the 
California Vehicle Code PW Consent Adopt resolution

21 Award Construction Contract - On call asphalt and concrete PW Consent Approve
22 FEMA BRIC grant study session PW Study Session Direction to staff
23 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan PW Study Session Direction to staff
24 Transportation Management Association feasibility study approval PW Regular Approve
25 West Bay Sanitary - MOU for Recycled Water PW Regular Approve
26 Parks capital projects and use of Measure T funds PW, ASD Study Session Direction to staff
27 Resolution authorizing Measure T bond issuance PW, ASD Consent Adopt resolution
28 Award MPCC Solar Microgrid PPA PW, CMO Regular Contract award or amend

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CDD-Community Development
LCS-Library and Community Services

PD-Police
PW-Public Works

ATTACHMENT A

Page K-1.2



Administrative Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   7/20/2021 
Staff Report Number:  21-143-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Recruitment status report as of July 14, 2021  

 
Recommendation 
This is an informational item and does not require City Council action. 

 
Policy Issues 
City Council authorizes the annual budget, including approved full-time equivalent (FTE) personnel budgets, 
and delegates personnel management to the city manager. The purpose of this report is to transmit the 
recruitment status of all authorized vacancies as of the report date. 

 
Background 
Recruitment status updates provide a snapshot view of vacant positions across the organization and 
provide insight into which vacant positions impact workgroups. The report reflects all known vacancies or 
pending vacancies as of the report date. 

 
Analysis 
Attachment A lists the recruitment status of all vacant full-time equivalent classifications July 14. As the first 
report of fiscal year 2021-22, City staff has streamlined the report production to sync with the authorized 
headcount tracking system used by the management staff. New data includes the vacant classification’s 
recruitment status as of the date of the report, the reason for vacancy, department and division, and 
employee group. 
 
Of particular note in Attachment A are the positions with a recruitment status of “99-pending prioritization.” 
With limited human resources staff capacity to open new recruitments, the city manager prioritizes 
recruitments based on operational needs weekly. Administrative services staff are working to increase 
capacity to expand the number of recruitments; however, recent changes in the department’s senior staff 
have set those efforts back several weeks. City staff intends to release a request for proposals by the end of 
July for contract services to support non-executive recruitments. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
City staff anticipates returning to City Council in August or September, 2021 to request a budget 
amendment and contract approval to augment recruitment services. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

AGENDA ITEM K-2

Page K-2.1



Agenda item K2 
Soody Tronson, resident 

Dear Council 

If there is one thing constant about Council meetings is the never ending addition of new 
personnel to the City staff. 

I note that while the table references "vacant" position, there is not a single clue as to the 
overall staffing. For example, the City does not provide an organizational chart and no one 
knows and with who else these vacant positions fit. Neither do we ever know, objectively, 
what is being done by the existing personnel and what is not. 

There has also not been an independent audit of the efficiency of the City that is has not 
been commissioned by the Staff itself. 

The Staff sets the agendas and the residents have no say on what gets to be on the 
agenda. Regardless of how many times residents express concern about various topics, 
including the City Staff and Police Dept. numbers/compensation, they are never 
addressed. 

Why is the City not publicly tracking a list of topics the residents have concerns about and 
allocate a reasonable portion of the Council meetings exchanging with residents about 
their concerns. 

Soody Tronson 

K2-PUBLIC COMMENT



Staff Report #: 21-143-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. FTE recruitment status report as of July 14, 2021 
 
Report prepared by: 
Kristen Strubbe, Interim Human Resources Manager 

Page K-2.2



City of Menlo Park

FTE recruitment status report

As of July 14, 2021

# Name Auth. Filled Vacant Recruitment Status Vacancy reason Dept-Division Unit

1 Plan Check Engineer 1.00   - 1.00 00-PR required New authorization CDD-Building AFSCME

2 Planning Manager 1.00   - 1.00 00-PR required New authorization CDD-Planning Unrep mgmt

3 Management Analyst I/II 1.00   - 1.00 02-Workplan development Promotion/transfer ASD-HR Unrep conf

4 Water System Operator I 1.00   - 1.00 02-Workplan development Separation PW-Water SEIU

5 Child Care Teacher II 1.00   - 1.00 03-Accepting applications Separation LCS-Childcare SEIU

6 Assistant Engineer 1.00   - 1.00 04-Reviewing applications Separation PW-Engineering SEIU

7 Librarian II 1.00   - 1.00 05-Testing process New authorization LCS-Library SEIU

8 Librarian I/II 1.00   - 1.00 06-Dept interviews Separation LCS-Library SEIU

9 Asst. Public Works Director - Transportation 1.00   - 1.00 07-Background Separation PW-Transportation Unrep mgmt

10 Associate Transportation Engineer 1.00   - 1.00 07-Background New authorization PW-Transportation SEIU

11 Library and Community Services Supervisor 1.00   - 1.00 09-Start date confirmed New authorization LCS-Childcare AFSCME

12 Library and Community Services Supervisor 1.00   - 1.00 09-Start date confirmed New authorization LCS-Childcare AFSCME

13 Recreation Coordinator 1.00   - 1.00 10-Reinstate Separation LCS-Facilities&Events AFSCME

14 Program Assistant 1.00   - 1.00 10-Reinstate New authorization LCS-Programs&Classes SEIU

15 Asst. Administrative Services Director 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation ASD-Finance Unrep mgmt

16 Management Analyst I/II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization ASD-Finance AFSCME

17 Enterprise Apps Support Specialist I/II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization ASD-IT SEIU

18 Enterprise Apps Support Specialist I/II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization ASD-IT SEIU

19 IT Specialist I/II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization ASD-IT SEIU

20 Community Development Director 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation CDD-Admin Unrep mgmt

21 Management Analyst II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation CDD-Admin AFSCME

22 Building Inspector II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization CDD-Building SEIU

23 Permit Technician 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization CDD-Building SEIU

24 Assistant/Associate Planner 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation CDD-Planning SEIU

25 Principal Planner 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization CDD-Planning AFSCME

26 Economic Development Manager 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization CMO-EconDev Unrep mgmt

27 Management Analyst I/II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization CMO-Sustainability AFSCME

28 Senior Program Assistant 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization LCS-Facilities&Events SEIU

29 Program Assistant 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization LCS-Programs&Classes SEIU

30 Program Assistant 0.50   - 0.50 99-Pending prioritization New authorization LCS-Programs&Classes SEIU

31 Program Assistant 0.50   - 0.50 99-Pending prioritization New authorization LCS-Programs&Classes SEIU

32 Program Assistant 0.50   - 0.50 99-Pending prioritization New authorization LCS-Programs&Classes SEIU

33 Program Assistant 0.50   - 0.50 99-Pending prioritization New authorization LCS-Programs&Classes SEIU

34 Police Commander 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation PD-Admin Unrep mgmt

35 Police Records Specialist 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization PD-Dispatch&Records SEIU

36 Police Sergeant 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation PD-Patrol PSA

37 Management Analyst I 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization PW-Admin SEIU

38 Construction Inspector II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation PW-Engineering SEIU

39 Asst. Public Works Director - Engineering 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation PW-Engineering Unrep mgmt

40 Maintenance Worker II 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization Separation PW-Maintenance SEIU

41 Maintenance Worker I 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization PW-Maintenance SEIU

42 Maintenance Worker I 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization PW-Maintenance SEIU

43 Public Works Superintendent 1.00   - 1.00 99-Pending prioritization New authorization PW-Maintenance Unrep mgmt

41.00   - 41.00 

Full-time equivalent (FTE)

Page K-2.3

ATTACHMENT A


	20210720 City Council special agenda
	H1-20210720 CC-Menlo Park Historical Association 50 yr
	I1-20210720 CC-Minutes
	20210610 City Council special minutes-DRAFT
	20210615 City Council special minutes-DRAFT
	20210622 City Council regular minutes-DRAFT
	20210628 City Council special minutes-DRAFT
	20210629 City Council special minutes-DRAFT

	I2-20210720 CC-Easment grant Bedwell Bayfront Park forthe South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project
	1-SR - Grant of easement to USA for water control structure
	2-Att A - Reso 6644- Grant of easement to USA for water control structure
	3-Att B - SBSP Ravenswood Phase 2
	4-Att C - Grant of Easement to USA Water Control Structure_Final
	Exhibit A - Legal Description of City Parcel
	Exhibit B - Easement legal desc'n and plat map
	Encroachment Agreement To USFWS_Draft Final
	Exhibit C - PARTNER AGREEMENT w Insurance Info

	Grant of Easement to USFWS Water Control Structure_Draft Final

	5-Att D - Water control structure plans
	6-Att E - Encroachment Agreement To USFWS_Final
	Exhibit B - Encroachment Exhibit_REVISED
	Sheets and Views
	Overview Sheet-SH01
	Overview Sheet-SH02
	Haul Road Grading Area-REV-SH03
	HTZ along BB Park-SH04
	HTZ along BB Park-SH05


	Exhibit C - PARTNER AGREEMENT w Insurance Info
	Encroachment Agreement To USFWS_Draft Final
	Att F - Encroachment Agreement To USFWS_Final
	Exhibit A - Legal Description of City Parcel



	I3-20210720 CC-CDE reimburse BHCDC
	1-Staff Report 072021
	2-ATT A - Reso 6646 21-22
	3-Att-B_CSPP-1519-00
	Public.pdf
	CCC 04.2017
	CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES

	CO-005 CA Civil Rights Certification
	CERTIFICATION

	Resolution 21-22



	I4-20210720 CC-CC calendar August meetings
	1-SR adopting August 17 and 31 as regular meetings
	2-Att A Reso 6647
	3-Att B-1074-amending city council meeting day and time

	J1-20210720 CC-Stormwater fee
	1-SR Stormwater Fees Public Hearing
	2-Att A - Reso 6645 Stormwater Fees

	J1-Presentation- Local Stormwater Fee.pdf
	K1-20210720 CC-CC agenda topics
	CMO(1)-Agenda topics
	CMO(2)-Agenda topics-Att A

	K2-20210720 CC-Recruitment status
	01. SR - recruitment update
	02. Att A - Recruitment status report as of 20210714

	K2-Public comment

	Text9: Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager
	Text10: City of Menlo Park, 701 Laurel St, Menlo Park 90425 Ca
	ContractorBidder Firm Name Printed: City of Menlo Park
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager
	Date Executed: 
	Executed in the County of: San Mateo County, Ca
	Proposer or Bidder Firm Name: City of Menlo Park
	Federal ID Number: 946000370
	Name and Title of Person Signing: Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager
	Date Executed_af_date: 
	Executed in the County and State of: San Mateo County, Ca
	RESOLUTION: City of Menlo Park
	BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of: 
	and:  CSPP-1519-00
	NAME 1: Starla Jerome-Robinson
	NAME 2: 
	NAME 3: 
	TITLE 1: City Manager
	TITLE 2: 
	TITLE 3: 
	day of: 
	2018 by the: 
	PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS: City of Menlo Park
	Governing Board of:  San Mateo
	undefined: Judi Herren
	I: City of Menlo Park
	Clerk of the Governing Board of:  San Mateo County
	Text2:  City Council
	Date: 


